Release 8

# **Discovering JMP**

"The real voyage of discovery consists not in seeking new landscapes, but in having new eyes." Marcel Proust

JMP, A Business Unit of SAS SAS Campus Drive Cary, NC 27513

8.0.2

The correct bibliographic citation for this manual is as follows: SAS Institute Inc. 2009. *JMP*<sup>®</sup> 8 *Discovering JMP*. Cary, NC: SAS Institute Inc.

#### JMP<sup>®</sup> 8 Discovering JMP

Copyright © 2009, SAS Institute Inc., Cary, NC, USA

ISBN 978-1-60764-318-0

All rights reserved. Produced in the United States of America.

For a hard-copy book: No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of the publisher, SAS Institute Inc.

For a Web download or e-book: Your use of this publication shall be governed by the terms established by the vendor at the time you acquire this publication.

**U.S. Government Restricted Rights Notice:** Use, duplication, or disclosure of this software and related documentation by the U.S. government is subject to the Agreement with SAS Institute and the restrictions set forth in FAR 52.227-19, Commercial Computer Software-Restricted Rights (June 1987).

SAS Institute Inc., SAS Campus Drive, Cary, North Carolina 27513.

1st printing, December 2009

JMP<sup>®</sup>, SAS<sup>®</sup> and all other SAS Institute Inc. product or service names are registered trademarks or trademarks of SAS Institute Inc. in the USA and other countries. ® indicates USA registration.

Other brand and product names are registered trademarks or trademarks of their respective companies.

## Contents

## **Discovering JMP**

	About This Guide
	Introducing JMP
	Basic Concepts
	How Do I Get Started?
	Starting JMP
	Creating a New Data Table
	Understanding JMP Data Tables
	Using Platforms
	How is JMP Different from Excel? 12
ł	How Do I Access Help? 14
	Help Menu 14
	JMP Web Site 19
	Preparing Data
	Prerequisites for Graphing and Analyzing Data
1	Moving Data into JMP 19
	Typing Data 19
	Copying and Pasting Data 23
	Importing Data
(	Opening Existing JMP Data Tables    29
/	Accessing the Sample Data Tables 29
	Interacting with Data
	Editing Data
	Selecting and Deselecting Data 30
	Creating Patterned Data
	Viewing or Changing Column Information
	Manipulating Data
	Filtering Data
	Calculating Values Using Formulas 46
	Visualizing Your Data
	Graphing Data
	About This Chapter
	Using Single Variable Graphs

Histograms	51
Bar Charts	53
Using Multiple Variable Graphs	55
Scatterplots	6
Scatterplot Matrix	;9
Side-by-Side Box Plots    6	62
Overlay Plots	í4
Variability Chart	7
Graph Builder	í9
Bubble Plots    7	'2
Analyzing Your Data	

## 4 Analyzing Your Data

Distributions, Relationships, and Models	77
About This Chapter	79
Prerequisites	79
The Importance of Graphing Your Data	79
Understanding Modeling Types	81
Performing Analyses	34
Analyzing Distributions	34
Analyzing Relationships	91
About Advanced Modeling and Analysis 10	29
Modeling Id	9
Multivariate Methods 1	10
Reliability and Survival	II

## 5 Customizing JMP

Saving Results, Table Variables, Scripts, and Preferences	113
Saving Platform Results	115
Journals	115
Projects	116
Working with Table Variables	118
Example: Viewing and Editing Table Variables	118
Creating Table Variables	119
Working with Scripts	120
Example: Creating and Running a Script	121
Changing Preferences	122
Example: Changing Preferences	123

#### **6** Special Features

Automatic Updating, Using Flash, and Integrating with SAS	127
Automatically Updating Analyses and Graphics	129
Example: Using Automatic Recalc	129

Creating Flash Versions of the Profiler and Bubble Plot	132
Integrating JMP and SAS	134

## A Navigating JMP

Menus and Shortcuts	137
The Analyze Menu	139
The Graph Menu	142
The Tables Menu	146
Keyboard Shortcuts and Mouse Actions	147
Files	147
Data Tables	147
Windows	149
Mouse Actions	149

#### Origin

JMP was developed by SAS Institute Inc., Cary, NC. JMP is not a part of the SAS System, though portions of JMP were adapted from routines in the SAS System, particularly for linear algebra and probability calculations. Version 1 of JMP went into production in October, 1989.

#### Credits

JMP was conceived and started by John Sall. Design and development were done by John Sall, Chung-Wei Ng, Michael Hecht, Richard Potter, Brian Corcoran, Annie Dudley Zangi, Bradley Jones, Craige Hales, Chris Gotwalt, Paul Nelson, Xan Gregg, Jianfeng Ding, Eric Hill, John Schroedl, Laura Lancaster, Scott McQuiggan, and Peng Liu.

In the SAS Institute Technical Support division, Wendy Murphrey and Toby Trott provide technical support and conduct test site administration. Statistical technical support is provided by Craig DeVault, Duane Hayes, Elizabeth Edwards, Kathleen Kiernan, and Tonya Mauldin.

Nicole Jones, Jim Borek, Kyoko Keener, Hui Di, Joseph Morgan, Wenjun Bao, Fang Chen, Susan Shao, Hugh Crews, Yusuke Ono and Kelci Miclaus provide ongoing quality assurance. Additional testing and technical support is done by Noriki Inoue, Kyoko Takenaka, and Masakazu Okada from SAS Japan.

Bob Hickey is the release engineer.

The JMP manuals were written by Ann Lehman, Lee Creighton, John Sall, Bradley Jones, Erin Vang, Melanie Drake, Meredith Blackwelder, Diane Perhac, Jonathan Gatlin, and Susan Conaghan with contributions from Annie Dudley Zangi and Brian Corcoran. Creative services and production was done by SAS Publications. Melanie Drake implemented the help system.

Jon Weisz and Jeff Perkinson provided project management. Also thanks to Lou Valente, Ian Cox, Mark Bailey, and Malcolm Moore for technical advice.

Thanks also to Georges Guirguis, Warren Sarle, Gordon Johnston, Duane Hayes, Russell Wolfinger, Randall Tobias, Robert N. Rodriguez, Ying So, Warren Kuhfeld, George MacKensie, Bob Lucas, Warren Kuhfeld, Mike Leonard, and Padraic Neville for statistical R&D support. Thanks are also due to Doug Melzer, Bryan Wolfe, Vincent DelGobbo, Biff Beers, Russell Gonsalves, Mitchel Soltys, Dave Mackie, and Stephanie Smith, who helped us get started with SAS Foundation Services from JMP.

#### Acknowledgments

We owe special gratitude to the people that encouraged us to start JMP, to the alpha and beta testers of JMP, and to the reviewers of the documentation. In particular we thank Michael Benson, Howard Yetter (d), Andy Mauromoustakos, Al Best, Stan Young, Robert Muenchen, Lenore Herzenberg, Ramon Leon, Tom Lange, Homer Hegedus, Skip Weed, Michael Emptage, Pat Spagan, Paul Wenz, Mike Bowen, Lori Gates, Georgia Morgan, David Tanaka, Zoe Jewell, Sky Alibhai, David Coleman,

Linda Blazek, Michael Friendly, Joe Hockman, Frank Shen, J.H. Goodman, David Iklé, Barry Hembree, Dan Obermiller, Jeff Sweeney, Lynn Vanatta, and Kris Ghosh.

Also, we thank Dick DeVeaux, Gray McQuarrie, Robert Stine, George Fraction, Avigdor Cahaner, José Ramirez, Gudmunder Axelsson, Al Fulmer, Cary Tuckfield, Ron Thisted, Nancy McDermott, Veronica Czitrom, Tom Johnson, Cy Wegman, Paul Dwyer, DaRon Huffaker, Kevin Norwood, Mike Thompson, Jack Reese, Francois Mainville, and John Wass.

We also thank the following individuals for expert advice in their statistical specialties: R. Hocking and P. Spector for advice on effective hypotheses; Robert Mee for screening design generators; Roselinde Kessels for advice on choice experiments; Greg Piepel, Peter Goos, J. Stuart Hunter, Dennis Lin, Doug Montgomery, and Chris Nachtsheim for advice on design of experiments; Jason Hsu for advice on multiple comparisons methods (not all of which we were able to incorporate in JMP); Ralph O'Brien for advice on homogeneity of variance tests; Ralph O'Brien and S. Paul Wright for advice on statistical power; Keith Muller for advice in multivariate methods, Harry Martz, Wayne Nelson, Ramon Leon, Dave Trindade, Paul Tobias, and William Q. Meeker for advice on reliability plots; Lijian Yang and J.S. Marron for bivariate smoothing design; George Milliken and Yurii Bulavski for development of mixed models; Will Potts and Cathy Maahs-Fladung for data mining; Clay Thompson for advice on contour plotting algorithms; and Tom Little, Damon Stoddard, Blanton Godfrey, Tim Clapp, and Joe Ficalora for advice in the area of Six Sigma; and Josef Schmee and Alan Bowman for advice on simulation and tolerance design.

For sample data, thanks to Patrice Strahle for Pareto examples, the Texas air control board for the pollution data, and David Coleman for the pollen (eureka) data.

#### Translations

Erin Vang, Trish O'Grady, Elly Sato, and Kyoko Keener coordinate localization. Special thanks to Noriki Inoue, Kyoko Takenaka, Masakazu Okada, Naohiro Masukawa and Yusuke Ono (SAS Japan); and Professor Toshiro Haga (retired, Tokyo University of Science) and Professor Hirohiko Asano (Tokyo Metropolitan University) for reviewing our Japanese translation; Professors Fengshan Bai, Xuan Lu, and Jianguo Li at Tsinghua University in Beijing, and their assistants Rui Guo, Shan Jiang, Zhicheng Wan, and Qiang Zhao; and William Zhou (SAS China) and Zhongguo Zheng, professor at Peking University, for reviewing the Simplified Chinese translation; Jacques Goupy (consultant, ReConFor) and Olivier Nuñez (professor, Universidad Carlos III de Madrid) for reviewing the French translation; Dr. Byung Chun Kim (professor, Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology) and Duk-Hyun Ko (SAS Korea) for reviewing the Korean translation; Bertram Schäfer and David Meintrup (consultants, StatCon) for reviewing the German translation; Patrizia Omodei, Maria Scaccabarozzi, and Letizia Bazzani (SAS Italy) for reviewing the Italian translation. Finally, thanks to all the members of our outstanding translation teams.

#### **Past Support**

Many people were important in the evolution of JMP. Special thanks to David DeLong, Mary Cole, Kristin Nauta, Aaron Walker, Ike Walker, Eric Gjertsen, Dave Tilley, Ruth Lee, Annette Sanders, Tim Christensen, Jeff Polzin, Eric Wasserman, Charles Soper, Wenjie Bao, and Junji Kishimoto. Thanks to SAS Institute quality assurance by Jeanne Martin, Fouad Younan, and Frank Lassiter. Additional testing for Versions 3 and 4 was done by Li Yang, Brenda Sun, Katrina Hauser, and Andrea Ritter.

Also thanks to Jenny Kendall, John Hansen, Eddie Routten, David Schlotzhauer, and James Mulherin. Thanks to Steve Shack, Greg Weier, and Maura Stokes for testing JMP Version 1. Thanks for support from Charles Shipp, Harold Gugel (d), Jim Winters, Matthew Lay, Tim Rey, Rubin Gabriel, Brian Ruff, William Lisowski, David Morganstein, Tom Esposito, Susan West, Chris Fehily, Dan Chilko, Jim Shook, Ken Bodner, Rick Blahunka, Dana C. Aultman, and William Fehlner.

#### **Technology License Notices**

The ImageMan DLL is used with permission of Data Techniques, Inc.

Scintilla is Copyright 1998-2003 by Neil Hodgson <neilh@scintilla.org>. NEIL HODGSON DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO THIS SOFTWARE, INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS, IN NO EVENT SHALL NEIL HODGSON BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM LOSS OF USE, DATA OR PROFITS, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER TORTIOUS ACTION, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THIS SOFTWARE.

XRender is Copyright © 2002 Keith Packard. KEITH PACKARD DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO THIS SOFTWARE, INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS, IN NO EVENT SHALL KEITH PACKARD BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM LOSS OF USE, DATA OR PROFITS, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER TORTIOUS ACTION, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THIS SOFTWARE.

## **About This Guide**

*Discovering JMP* provides a general introduction to the JMP software. This guide assumes that you have no knowledge of JMP. Whether you are an analyst, researcher, student, professor, or statistician, this guide gives you a general overview of JMP's user interface and features.

This guide introduces you to the following information:

- Starting JMP
- The structure of a JMP window
- Getting data into JMP
- Preparing and manipulating data
- Using interactive graphs to learn from your data
- · Performing simple analyses to augment graphs
- Customizing JMP and special features

This guide contains six chapters. Each chapter contains examples that reinforce the concepts presented in the chapter. All of the statistical concepts are at an introductory level. The sample data used in this book are included with the software. Here is a description of each chapter:

- Chapter 1, Introducing JMP, provides an overview of the JMP application. You learn how content is organized and how to navigate the software.
- Chapter 2, Preparing Data, describes how to import data from a variety of sources, and prepare it for analysis. There is also an overview of data manipulation tools.
- Chapter 3, Visualizing Your Data, describes graphs and charts you can use to visualize and understand your data. The examples range from simple analyses involving a single variable, to multi-variable graphs that enable you to see relationships between many variables.
- Chapter 4, Analyzing Your Data, describes many commonly used analysis techniques. These range from simple techniques that do not require the use of statistical methods, to advanced techniques, where knowledge of statistics is useful.
- Chapter 5, Customizing JMP, describes using journals and projects, settings preferences, and includes a section on the JMP Scripting Language (JSL).
- Chapter 6, Special Features, describes how to automatically update graphs and analyses as data changes, and how JMP interacts with SAS.

After reviewing this guide, you will be comfortable navigating and working with your data in JMP.

While JMP is available in both Windows and Mac operating systems, the material in this guide is based on a Windows operating system.



## Introducing JMP

**Basic Concepts** 

Welcome to JMP, pronounced "jump."

JMP software is a powerful, interactive, data visualization and statistical analysis tool. You can use the understanding you gain from the visualization tools to guide your analytics and statistical analyses.

JMP is equally useful to the researcher who wants to perform a wide range of statistical analyses and modeling, and the business analyst who wants to quickly uncover trends and patterns in data. With JMP, you do not have to be an expert in statistics to get information from your data.

For example, you can use JMP to:

- Create interactive graphs and charts to explore your data and discover relationships
- Discover patterns of variation across many variables at once
- Explore and summarize large amounts of data
- Develop powerful statistical models you can use to predict the future

Figure 1.1 Examples of JMP Elements



## Contents

How Do I Get Started?
Starting JMP
Creating a New Data Table
Understanding JMP Data Tables
Using Platforms
How is JMP Different from Excel?12
How Do I Access Help?
Help Menu
JMP Web Site

## How Do I Get Started?

This section discusses how to start a JMP session and familiarizes you with the user interface.

#### Starting JMP

Here are two common ways to start JMP:

- Double-click the JMP icon, usually found on your desktop. This starts JMP, but does not open any existing JMP files.
- Double-click an existing JMP file. This starts JMP and opens the file.

If you do not open an existing JMP file, your initial view is shown in Figure 1.2.

Figure 1.2 Initial View of JMP



The initial view of JMP includes the Tip of the Day window and the JMP Starter window. At the top of the main JMP window is a menu bar and a toolbar. You can access most JMP features through both the menus and toolbars. By default, windows in JMP are not maximized. This enables you to see the interaction between the windows.

For the initial view, the active window (top-most window) is the Tip of the Day window. Close that window by clicking the close button at the top right of the window. The JMP Starter is now the active window, and is shown in Figure 1.3.

# Introducing JMP

5

#### 6 Introducing JMP

How Do I Get Started?

#### Figure 1.3 JMP Starter

🛃 JMP Starte		. 🗆 🛛
Click Category:	Opening and Creating Data Tables and Text	
File Basic Model	New Data Table Create a new Data Table, and display as a grid in a new wir	idow.
Multivariate Reliability	Open a JMP file containing a data table, or import it from and file.	other
Graph Surface Measure	Open Database Table Connect to a database.	
Control DOE Tables	New Script Write and edit text, including scripts.	
SAS	Open Script Open a file containing text, a script for example.	
	New Journal Create a new journal window.	
	Open Journal Open a file containing journaled JMP output.	
	New Project Create a new project used to group data, reports, scripts, an related material.	ıd
	Open Project Open a project file.	
	Preferences Examine and set system preferences.	

The JMP Starter is another way to access most of JMP's platforms and features. On the left is a list of categories. On the right are the features and commands related to that category. See the Appendix for a description of most of these features.

#### **Creating a New Data Table**

To create a new data table, perform one of the following actions (see Figure 1.4).

- Select File > New > Data Table.
- On the toolbar, click the **Data Table** icon.
- In the JMP Starter window, click the **File** category on the left, and then click the **New Data Table** button on the right.

7

Introducing JMP



#### Figure 1.4 Three Ways to Create a New Data Table

Notice that the icon on the menu item matches the icon on the toolbar item. This is true for all menu and toolbar items that perform corresponding actions.

Once you have created a data table, you can add your data. See "Moving Data into JMP," p. 19.

#### **Understanding JMP Data Tables**

A JMP data table is a collection of data organized into rows and columns. It is similar to an Excel spreadsheet, but with some important differences that are discussed later. A JMP data table also might also contain other information like notes, variables, and scripts. These supplementary items are discussed in later chapters.

You can open an example JMP data table and see the parts. Follow the steps below to open the Big Class.jmp data table.

- 1 From the Help menu, select Sample Data.
- 2 In the **Teaching Demonstrations** category, open the **Examples for Teaching** node by selecting the blue triangle next to it.
- 3 Click the **Big Class** link to open the **Big Class**.jmp data table. A partial view of the data table is shown in Figure 1.5.

#### 8 Introducing JMP





The major parts of a JMP data table are:

- **Data grid** The data grid, or spreadsheet, contains the actual data. It is divided by rows and columns. Generally, each row of a spreadsheet is a data point, and the different columns (or variables) give information about the data point. In Figure 1.5, each row corresponds to a person, and there are five columns of information. The information given about the person includes name, age, sex, height, and weight. Each column has a header, or name. That name is not part of the spreadsheet's total count of rows. In this example, the column names are name, age, sex, height.
- **Table panel** The table panel can contain table variables or table scripts. In this example, there are several saved scripts that are used to automatically recreate analyses. Table variables and table scripts are discussed in a later chapter.
- **Columns panel** The columns panel indicates the number of columns and lists the columns. In this example there are five columns. Icons to the left of the column name indicate a column's modeling type. Icons to the right indicate any attributes assigned to the column. These icons are discussed in a later chapter.
- **Rows panel** The rows panel indicates the number of rows in the data table, and how many rows are selected, excluded, hidden, or labeled. In this example there are 40 rows in the data table.

Interacting with the data grid, which includes adding rows and columns, entering data, and editing data, is discussed in the next chapter. When more than one JMP data table is viewed at the same time, each one appears in a separate window.

## **Using Platforms**

Once data is in a data table, you can create any of JMP's graphs or plots, and do many analyses. All of JMP's features are accessed through platforms, which are found primarily on the **Analyze** or **Graph** menus. They are called platforms because they do not just produce simple static output. Platform results appear in separate report windows, are highly interactive, and are linked to the data table.

The platforms under the **Analyze** and **Graph** menus provide a variety of analytical features and data exploration tools (graphs and plots). Each platform is described in the Appendix.

#### Launching a Platform and Viewing Results

To see an example of using a JMP platform, you can use the Companies.jmp file. If you want to do a basic analysis of the variable Profits (\$M), use the **Distribution** platform under the **Analyze** menu. To do the analysis, follow the steps below:

- 1 Open the launch window by selecting Analyze > Distribution.
- 2 Assign the Profits (\$M) variable to the Y, Columns role. To do this, select Profits (\$M) from the Select Columns box and click the Y, Columns button. The variable Profits (\$M) appears in the Y, Columns role. See Figure 1.6 for the completed window. Alternatively, you can click and drag Profits (\$M) from the Select Columns box to the Y, Columns box.
- 3 Click OK. The Distribution report window appears. See Figure 1.7.

Figure 1.6 Assign Profits (\$M)

Distribution							
The distribution of values in each column							
-Select Columns	Cast Selected Columns into Roles —	Action					
ul. Type ul. Size Co ⊿ Sales (\$M) ⊿ Profits (\$M)	Y, Columns Profits (\$M) optional	OK Cancel					
<pre>// # Employ // profit/emp</pre>	Weight optional numeric	Remove					
Assets A%profit/sales	Freq Optional numeric	Recall					
<u></u>	By optional	Help					

9

#### IO Introducing JMP How Do I Get Started?





The report window contains basic plots or graphs and a preliminary analysis. The results appear in an outline format, and you can show or hide any section by clicking on the disclosure button. Red triangle menus contain options and commands that let you request additional graphs and analysis at any time.

#### Adding and Removing Analyses and Graphics

The report window initially contains basic graphs and statistics. Use the red triangle menus to:

- · Remove existing graphs or statistics
- Request additional graphs or statistics

As an example of removing existing content, follow the steps below to remove the outlier box plot:

- 1 Select the red triangle menu next to Profits (\$M). See Figure 1.8.
- 2 Uncheck the **Outlier Box Plot** option. The outlier box plot is removed from the report window. See Figure 1.9.

0

-1000



#### Figure 1.8 Red Triangle Menu Next to Profits (\$M)

As an example of requesting additional output, follow the steps below to add a hypothesis test:

- 1 Select the Test Mean command on the same red triangle menu.
- 2 Fill out the resulting window by typing 500 in the Specify Hypothesized Mean box.
- 3 Click **OK**. The test for the mean is added to the report. See Figure 1.10.

Figure 1.10 Test for the Mean



#### Interacting with Platform Results

All platforms produce results that are interactive in many ways. Two of the common ways you can interact with platform results include the following:

- Closing or opening outlines
- Connecting platform results to the data table

-

Introducing JMP

#### Introducing JMP 12 How Do I Get Started?

You can close or open sections (or outlines) of the platform results. For example, to close the Quantiles outline, click the disclosure button next to Quantiles. See Figure 1.11.

Figure 1.11 Close the Quantiles Outline



Clicking here collapses the Quantiles outline

Platform results are interconnected with the data table. The histogram shows that there are a few students that are shorter than the rest. You can quickly identify those students by clicking the histogram bar for the shorter students. The corresponding rows in the data table are selected. See Figure 1.12.

Figure 1.12 Connection Between Platform Results and Data Table



#### Clicking the bar selects the corresponding rows

#### How is JMP Different from Excel?

If you are not familiar with JMP, and are familiar with Microsoft Excel or other spreadsheet applications, there are a number of differences that you should understand. For details of those differences, see Figure 1.13 to Figure 1.16.

Another difference not shown in the figures is that Excel formulas are applied to individual cells. In JMP, formulas are applied only to entire columns.

#### Figure 1.13 Columns and Data in Excel (left) and JMP (right)



#### Figure 1.14 JMP Multiple Tables



Figure 1.15 Data Placement in Grid

Data can be placed anywhere in grid. For this example, the data starts in row 5 and column 2.

	Α	В	С	D	E	F	
1							
2							
3							
4		name	age	sex	height	weight	
5		KATIE	12	F	59	95	
6		LOUISE	12	F	61	123	
7		JANE	12	F	55	74	
8		JACLYN	12	F	66	145	
9		LILLIE	12	F	52	64	

Column names are not part of grid. Name Weight Age Sex Height JACK 12 M 66 145 2 LILLIE 12 F 52 64 84 3 TIM 12 M 60 4 JAMES 12 M 61 128 5 ALICE 13 F 61 107 6 SUSAN 13 F 56 67 JOHN 13 M 65 98 8 JOE 13 M 63 105 No rows and Cannot mix numeric and

columns beyond existing data. Grid only as big as the data.

Cannot mix numeric and character data in the same column.

Tables are in different windows. $\Lambda$						
JMP (SAS Institute) - Big Class						
File Edit Tables Rows Cols D	¢E Analyze Gra	aph Tools View	Window			
🛅 🔛 💕 🗷 🗔 🎒 🎉 🛍	🛅 🗄 💕 😹 🖽 🍂 🖬 🛝 💽 ? 🕂 🕲 🖤 🖉 ۶ 🔍 ·					
📄 🗠 🌫 🎘 🕷 🏷 🕸 🖈	• 👫 ••• 🃰 🗷	] # 🖻 🔏 🖥	ù 🗄 🗄			
Little Class						
🔍 Li <sup>r</sup> 🛗 Big Class						
💌 Big Class	• •					
<ul> <li>Distribution</li> </ul>	•	name	age			
🗨 Bivariate	1	KATIE				
C Oneway	2	LOUISE				
	3	JANE				
A Cit Model	4	JACLYN				
	5	LILLIE				

## Data always starts in row 1 and column 1.

• •					
•	Name	Age	Sex	Height	Weight
1	JACK	12	М	66	145
2	LILLIE	12	F	52	64
3	TIM	12	М	60	84
4	JAMES	12	М	61	128
5	ALICE	13	F	61	107
6	SUSAN	13	F	56	67
7	JOHN	13	М	65	98
8	JOE	13	М	63	105

#### I4 Introducing JMP

How Do I Access Help?

#### Figure 1.16 Results in Excel versus JMP

10							
11	SUMMARY OUTPUT						
12							
13	Regression St	atistics					
14	Multiple R	0.802800015					
15	R Square	0.644487864					
16	Adjusted R Square	0.585235841					
17	Standard Error	18.09739085					
18	Observations	8					
19							
20	ANOVA						
21		df	SS	MS	F	Significance F	
22	Regression	1	3562.406667	3562.407	10.87706	0.016448038	
23	Residual	6	1965.093333	327.5156			
24	Total	7	5527.5				
25							
26		Coefficients	Standard Error	t Stat	P-value	Lower 95%	Upper 95%
27	Intercept	-195.0866667	89.62625095	-2.17667	0.072393	-414.3942019	24.22086853
28	X Variable 1	4.873333333	1.477645775	3.298039	0.016448	1.257664381	8.489002286
29							

#### Results appear in the grid.



#### Results appear in a separate window.

#### How Do I Access Help?

As you start using JMP, a variety of resources are available to supplement your learning. You have access to JMP's built-in Help menu and various online resources.

#### **Help Menu**

From the Help menu on JMP's menu bar, you can access the online documentation, online Help, web information, sample data, and more. See Figure 1.17.

#### Figure 1.17 Help Menu



- **Contents, Search, and Index** These three menu items access the JMP Help system. The Help system provides navigable and searchable documentation.
- **Tip of the Day** The Tip of the Day is a collection of helpful tips and hints that enhance your experience with JMP.
- **Indexes** The Indexes contain references that give definitions of JMP statistical terms, JSL functions, and JSL objects. For an introduction to JSL scripting, see the Customizing and Extending chapter.
- **Tutorials** Tutorials are self-contained mini lessons that demonstrate how to use some of JMP's statistical and graphical features.

**Tip**: If you are not familiar with JMP, start with the Beginners Tutorial. Every new JMP user should take this five-minute tutorial on the user-interface basics of JMP.

- **Books** This menu contains links to the full documentation book set, a description of all the JMP menus, and a quick reference describing keyboard shortcuts.
- **Sample Data** This provides access to all the sample data used in the documentation. The sample data helps with learning JMP.
- **JMP.com** JMP.com takes you to the JMP Web site. For more information about JMP's Web site and other resources, see "JMP Web Site," p. 15.
- **JMP User Community** JMP User Community takes you to the online user forum where you can download JMP files, access the JMP Blog, and discuss JMP topics with other users.

#### **JMP Web Site**

JMP's Web site (www.jmp.com) contains a wealth of information and provides links to the JMP Blog, JMP Discussion Forum, JMP User Community, the latest news and events, and file sharing. You can register for free weekly webinars, and access podcasts and other JMP literature. The Web site also

4

Introducing JMP

#### 16 Introducing JMP

How Do I Access Help?

contains videos that demonstrate the newest JMP features. You can also learn about joining one of the many regional JMP User's Groups.

## Chapter **2**

## **Preparing Data**

#### Prerequisites for Graphing and Analyzing Data

Before you can work with your data, the data has to be in a JMP data table and in the proper format. This chapter contains the following content:

- "Moving Data into JMP," p. 19
- "Opening Existing JMP Data Tables," p. 25
- "Accessing the Sample Data Tables," p. 25
- "Interacting with Data," p. 25

Figure 2.1 Example of a Data Table

💌 Companies	• •						
Notes Selected Data o	•	Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ	profit/emp
	1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523	4120.70
	2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929	21007.11
	3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200	18658.54
	4	Pharmaceut	big	6747.0	1102.2	50816	21690.02
	5	Computer	small	5284.0	454.0	12068	37620.15
	6	Pharmaceut	big	9422.0	747.0	54100	13807.76
	7	Computer	small	2876.1	333.3	9500	35084.21
	8	Computer	small	709.3	41.4	5000	8280.00
Columns (8/0)	9	Computer	small	2952.1	-680.4	18000	-37800.0
🔥 Туре	10	Computer	small	784.7	89.0	4708	18903.99
🔥 Size Co 🕂	11	Computer	small	1324.3	-119.7	13740	-8711.79
🚄 Sales (\$M)	12	Pharmaceut	medium	4175.6	939.5	28200	33315.60
🚄 Profits (\$M)	13	Computer	big	11899.0	829.0	95000	8726.32
#Employ	14	Computer	small	873.6	79.5	8200	9695.12
/ protivemp	15	Pharmaceut	big	9844.0	1082.0	83100	13020.46
A %nrofit/colec 🖧	16	Pharmaceut	small	969.2	227.4	3418	66530.13
	17	Pharmaceut	medium	6698.4	1495.4	34400	43470.93
	18	Computer	big	5956.0	412.0	56000	7357.14
	19	Pharmaceut	big	5903.7	681.1	42100	16178.15
	20	Computer	medium	2959.3	252.8	31404	8049.93
	21	Pharmaceut	small	1198.3	86.5	8527	10144.25
	22	Computer	small	990.5	20.9	8578	2436.47
Rows	23	Pharmaceut	medium	3243.0	471.3	21300	22126.76
All rows 32	24	Computer	small	1382.3	0.3	2900	103.45
Selected 0	25	Computer	small	1014.0	47.7	9100	5241.76
Excluded 0	26	Computer	small	1769.2	60.8	10200	5960.78
Hidden 0	27	Computer	small	1643.9	118.3	9548	12390.03
Labelled 0	28	Computer	big	1096.9	-639.3	82300	-7767.92

## Contents

Moving Data into JMP
Typing Data
Copying and Pasting Data23
Importing Data
Opening Existing JMP Data Tables25
Accessing the Sample Data Tables25
Interacting with Data
Editing Data
Selecting and Deselecting Data 30
Creating Patterned Data
Viewing or Changing Column Information
Manipulating Data
Filtering Data
Calculating Values Using Formulas

#### Moving Data into JMP

This section describes three ways you can move data into JMP:

- If you want to type data directly into the data table, see "Typing Data," p. 19.
- If you want to copy and paste data from another application, see "Copying and Pasting Data," p. 23.
- If you want to import data from another application, see "Importing Data," p. 23.

You can also import data into JMP from a database. For more information, see the JMP User Guide.

#### **Typing Data**

To demonstrate directly typing data into a JMP data table, enter the data shown in Figure 2.2.

Figure 2.2 Blood Pressure Data

◆ _ ♥					
•	Month	Control	Placebo	300mg	450mg
1	March	165	163	166	168
2	April	162	159	165	163
3	May	164	158	161	153
4	June	162	161	158	151
5	July	166	158	160	148
6	August	163	158	157	150

#### Scenario

The data are the results from a study that investigated a new blood pressure medication. Each individual's blood pressure was measured over a six month period. Two doses (300mg and 450mg) of the medication were used, along with a control and placebo group. The data is the average blood pressure for each group.

#### Creating a Data Table

To create the data table shown in Figure 2.2, follow the steps below:

1 Create an empty data table by selecting **File > New > Data Table**. See Figure 2.3.

Figure 2.3 Empty Data Table

🛗 Untitled			
■Untitled		Column 1	
<ul> <li>Columns (1/0)</li> <li>▲ Column 1</li> </ul>			
Rows			
Selected 0			
Hidden 0			
Labelled O			~
	<		

A new data table has one column and no rows.

2 Enter the column name Month. See Figure 2.4.

Figure 2.4 Entering a Column Name

▼Untitled	Column 1	♥Untitled		Month	
Columns (1/1)		Columns (1/0)			
	1 .	Column 1	1.1	1	

Click once to select

Click again, then type

**Note:** If you double-click too quickly, the Column Info window appears. You can change the column name there as well.

- 3 Add rows to the table by following these instructions. See Figure 2.5.
  - Right-click in the left margin of the grid.
  - Select Add Rows.
  - Since you want to add six rows, type 6 into the Add Rows window and click OK.

#### Figure 2.5 Adding Rows



Figure 2.6 shows six rows added to the data table.

Figure 2.6 Six Rows Added

♥ Untitled	•		
	•	Month	
	1	•	
	2	-	
	3	-	
💌 Columns (1/0)	4	•	
🚄 Month	5	•	
	6	-	

4 Enter the Month information by double-clicking into a cell and typing. The completed column is shown in Figure 2.7.

Figure 2.7 Month Column Completed



In the column information panel, look at the modeling type icon to the left of the column name. It has changed to signify that Month is now nominal (previously it was continuous). See Figure 2.6. This difference is important and is discussed in "Viewing or Changing Column Information," p. 33.

5 Add the Control column. See Figure 2.8 for instructions on adding a new column.

Figure 2.8 Adding a Column



6 Enter the Control data that is shown in Figure 2.2. Your data table now consists of six rows and two columns, as shown in Figure 2.9.

#### 22 Preparing Data

Moving Data into JMP

#### Figure 2.9 Second Column Added

	<ul> <li>Untitled</li> </ul>	• •			
		•	Month	Control	
		1	March	165	
		2	April	162	
		3	Мау	164	
<b>a</b> 1	로 Column <u>s (</u> 2/0)	4	June	162	
2 columns—	🆺 Month	5	July	166	
	🚄 Control	6	August	163	
6 rows	Rows				
0 - 5 110	All rows 6				
	Selected 0				

7 Continue adding columns and entering data to create the final data table that has six rows and five columns, as shown in Figure 2.10.

#### Figure 2.10 Final Data Table

♥ Untitled		Month	Control	Placebo	300mg	450mg	
	1	March	165	163	166	168	
	2	April	162	159	165	163	
	3	May	164	158	161	153	
💌 Columns (5/0)	4	June	162	161	158	151	
🔥 Month	5	July	166	158	160	148	
🚄 Control	6	August	163	158	157	150	
🚄 Placebo							
🚄 300mg							
🚄 450mg							
Rows							
All rows 6							

#### **Changing the Data Table Name**

You can change the name of the data table by following the steps below:

- 1 Double-click on the data table name in the Table Panel. See Figure 2.11.
- 2 Type the new name.

Figure 2.11 Changing the Data Table Name



#### Double-click here, then type new name

## **Copying and Pasting Data**

You can move data into JMP by copying and pasting from another application. To demonstrate this approach, use the Bigclass.xls file.

- Open the Bigclass.xls file, usually found here:
   C:\Program Files\SAS\JMP\8\Support Files English\Sample Import Data
- 2 Select all of the rows and columns, including the column names. In total, you should select 41 rows and five columns.
- 3 Copy the selected data.
- 4 In JMP select File > New > Data Table to create an empty table.
- 5 Select Edit > Paste with Column Names to paste the data and column headings. Or, if the data you are pasting into JMP does not have column names, then use Edit > Paste. A partial view of the resulting table is shown in Figure 2.12.

Figure 2.12 Copying and Pasting Data

🔜 Untitled							
Ontitled		name	age	sex	height	weight	
	1	KATIE	12	F	59	95	
	2	LOUISE	12	F	61	123	
💌 Columns (5/0)	3	JANE	12	F	55	74	
🔥 name	4	JACLYN	12	F	66	145	
🚄 age	5	LILLIE	12	F	52	64	
h sex	6	TIM	12	М	60	84	
/ weight	7	JAMES	12	М	61	128	
a weight	8	ROBERT	12	М	51	79	
Rows	9	BARBARA	13	F	60	112	
All rows 40	10	ALICE	13	F	61	107	
Selected 0	11	SUSAN	13	F	56	68	
Evoluted f	1 40		40	14	07		

## Importing Data

You can move data into JMP by importing from another application. To demonstrate importing data into JMP, import from a Microsoft Excel (.xls) file.

- 1 Select File > Open.
- 2 Navigate to the Sample Import Data folder, usually found here: C:\Program Files\SAS\JMP\8\Support Files English
- 3 On the "Files of Type" menu, select **Excel 97-2003 (\*.xls)**. See Figure 2.13.
- 4 Select Bigclass.xls.
- 5 Click Open.

Figure 2.14 shows a partial view of the resulting data table.

#### Figure 2.13 Importing an Excel File

	Open Data File				? 🛛
	Look in:	🚞 Sample Import	Data 💌	3 🕫 🖻	•
	Pecent	Bigclass.xls Solubil.xls VA Lung Cancer	.xls		
	Desktop				
	My Documents				
		File name: Files of type:	Bigclass.xls Excel 97-2003 Files (*.xls)	*	Open Cancel
Control whether	My Computer		All JMP Files Data Files (*.imp:*.sd2;*.sd5;*.sas)	/bdat:*.sd7;*.xpt;*	Help
column labels are on row one Choose which worksheets to import instead of all the worksheets	Select this filter	the next time this dia I be Labels? at Guess / /idual worksheet sele	JMP Files (",imp," ist," int," ipp," imp JMP Data Tables (",imp) Excel 97-2003 Files ("ks) Text Files (",tst," csv,", dat," tsv) JMP Journals (",im) JMP Reports (",imp) JMP Projects (",imppi) JMP Menu Archives (",impmenu) SAS Data Sets (",sas7bdat,",sd7," SAS Program Files (", isas7 JMM Menu (schum,", itml)	sd2;*.sd5;*.ssd0	

Figure 2.14 Bigclass Data Table

Bigclass							
💌 Bigclass							
Notes C:\Program Files\S/		name	age	sex	height	weight	
	1	KATIE	12	F	59	95	
	2	LOUISE	12	F	61	123	
	3	JANE	12	F	55	74	
💌 Columns (5/0)	4	JACLYN	12	F	66	145	
🔥 name	5	LILLIE	12	F	52	64	
🚄 age	6	TIM	12	М	60	84	
il sex	7	JAMES	12	М	61	128	
A height	8	ROBERT	12	M	51	79	
a weight	9	BARBARA	13	F	60	112	
	10	ALICE	13	F	61	107	
Rows	11	SUSAN	13	F	56	68	
All rows 40	12	JOHN	13	М	65	98	
Selected 0	13	JOE	13	М	63	105	
Excluded 0	14	MICHAEL	13	M	58	95	
Hidden 0	15	DAVID	13	М	59	79	
Labelled O	16	JUDY	14	F	61	81	

The Open Data File window (see Figure 2.13) has two additional options:

- You can control whether JMP assumes that column headings are on row one in the Excel file.
- If your Excel file has multiple worksheets, you can choose which worksheets to import. Each worksheet is imported to a separate data table.

When you import Excel files, JMP predicts where the column headings are and where the data begins. If the column names are not on row one, or if the data does not start on row two, it might be easier to use the copy and paste method described in the section called "Opening Existing JMP Data Tables," p. 25.

#### **Opening Existing JMP Data Tables**

To open an existing JMP data table, simply double-click on the file icon. If JMP is not already running, this starts JMP and opens the data table.

You can open an existing JMP file from inside JMP. Select **File > Open**, navigate to the file's location, select the file, and click **Open**.

#### Accessing the Sample Data Tables

The examples in the JMP documentation use sample data tables. The default location on Windows for the sample data is here:

C:\Program Files\SAS\JMP\8\Support Files English\Sample Data

To quickly access the sample data tables, select **Help > Sample Data**. The Sample Data Index appears. The Sample Data Index groups the data tables by topic. Click a blue triangle to see a list of data tables for that topic. Now click on a link to open a data table.

The Sample Data Index has two buttons:

**Open the Sample Data Directory** Clicking this button takes you to the sample data directory.

**See an Alphabetical List of all Sample Data Files** Clicking this button shows an alphabetical list of all the data tables. Click a link to open a data table.

#### **Interacting with Data**

This section shows the following:

- "Editing Data," p. 26
- "Selecting and Deselecting Data," p. 30
- "Creating Patterned Data," p. 32
- "Viewing or Changing Column Information," p. 33
- "Manipulating Data," p. 34
- "Calculating Values Using Formulas," p. 46

#### **Editing Data**

You often need to edit or change data, either a few cells at a time or for an entire column. This section contains the following information:

- "Changing Values," p. 26
- "Recoding Values," p. 26
- "Searching for Values," p. 27

The exercises in this section use the Companies.jmp data.

#### **Changing Values**

To change a value, double-click in the target cell, and then type the change.

**Note**: Double-clicking in a cell is not the same as selecting a cell. Double-clicking lets you edit a cell. A single click selects a cell. For more information about selecting rows, columns, and cells, see "Selecting and Deselecting Data," p. 30.

As an example of changing a value, the first row of the Companies.jmp data table contains information about a small computer company. See Figure 2.15.

Figure 2.15 Companies Data Table

		Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ	profit/emp	Assets	%prot
ĺ	1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523	4120.70	615.2	
	2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929	21007.11	4851.6	
I	3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200	18658.54	2233.7	

This company's information is incorrect. Correct the information by changing these values:

- Change the Sales (\$M) value to \$860.
- Change the **# Employ** value to 7400.
- Change the Assets value to 623.

#### **Recoding Values**

You can use recoding to change all the values in a column at once. To demonstrate how to recode values, suppose you are interested in comparing the sales of computer and pharmaceutical companies. When the results of your analysis are displayed, you want the company labels to be Comp and Pharm, not Computer and Pharmaceutical. One option is to go through all 32 rows of data and change all the "Computer" values to Comp and all the "Pharmaceutical" values to Pharm. That process would be tedious and inefficient with hundreds of rows of data. A better option is to use the recode capability:

- 1 Select the Type column by clicking once on the column heading.
- 2 Select Cols > Recode.
- 3 In the Recode window, enter the desired values in the **New Values** boxes. For this example, enter Comp in the Computer row, and Pharm in the Pharmaceutical row. See Figure 2.16.
- 4 Choose the **In Place** option from the menu. See the *JMP User Guide* for explanations of the menu options.
- 5 Click OK.
6 Click Continue on the alert window. The values update. See Figure 2.17.

Figure 2.16 Recode Window

Recode			
💌 Type		ОК	In Place
Count	Old Value New Valu	e Cascal	New Column
20	Computer Comp		Formula Column
12	Pharmaceut Pharm	In Place 🛛 🗸	L

### Figure 2.17 Recoded Values

ïts(\$M)
31.0
859.8
153.0
1102.2
>1

**Tip:** The Value Label column property lets you specify labels to use on output without changing the underlying value. See the *JMP User Guide* for more details.

### Searching for Values

In a data table that has thousands or tens of thousands of rows, it can be difficult to locate a particular row just by scrolling through the table. If you are looking for specific information, you can use the search feature to find it. If it finds data that matches the search criteria, it automatically navigates to the first matching row. For example, the Companies data table contains information about a company that has sales of \$11899. You can use the search feature to find that row.

- 1 Select Edit > Search > Find to launch the Search window.
- 2 In the Find what box, enter 11899 as shown in Figure 2.18.
- 3 Click Find. JMP finds the first cell that has 11899 in it, and highlights it. See Figure 2.19.

If multiple cells meet the search criteria, you can click **Find** again to highlight the next cell that meets the criteria.

Figure 2.18 Search Window

📓 Search data table 'Companie:	s'	
Find what: 11899		Find
Replace with:		Replace
🔲 Match case	By column 🗸	Replace All
Match entire cell value		Close
Use regular expressions		Help
Restrict to selected rows		🗹 Keep dialog open
🗹 Search data		
Search column names		

Figure 2.19 Highlighted Search Results

11	Computer	small	1324.3	-119.7	13740
12	Pharmaceut	medium	4175.6	939.5	28200
13	Computer	big	<mark>11899</mark> .0	829.0	95000
14	Computer	small	873.6	79.5	8200
15	Pharmaceut	big	9844.0	1082.0	83100
16	Pharmaceut	small	969.2	227.4	3418

You can also search for multiple rows at once, with each row matching some criteria. For example, suppose you want to select all of the rows that correspond to medium companies. To do this, follow the steps below:

- 1 Select Rows > Row Selection > Select Where to launch the Select rows window.
- 2 In the column list box on the left, select Size Co.
- 3 In the text box on the right, enter medium. See Figure 2.20.
- 4 Click **OK**.

### Figure 2.20 Select Rows Window

Select your ta	rget	Enter ye	our search	
column here	-	criteria	here	
Select rows				
Select rows in the data to th. Type th. Size Co Sales (\$M) Profits (\$M) # Employ Profitemp Assets % wprofit/sales	able that match specified	criteria	compare column um	Action OK Cancel Recall Help
🔲 Match case				
Action on currently sele	cted rows Clear current	selection	*	
Select rows if all cond	itions are met 🗸			
optional item	(	Add Condition		
Remove Selected Condit	ions			
🗆 Keep dialog open				

JMP highlights all of the rows that have Size Co equal to medium. There are seven. See Figure 2.21. Figure 2.21 Search Results Selected

11	Computer	small	1324.3	-119.7	13740	-8711.79	1040.2	-9.04
12	Pharmaceut	medium	4175.6	939.5	28200	33315.60	5848.0	22.50
13	Computer	big	11899.0	829.0	95000	8726.32	10075.0	6.97
14	Computer	small	873.6	79.5	8200	9695.12	808.0	9.10
15	Pharmaceut	big	9844.0	1082.0	83100	13020.46	7919.0	10.99
16	Pharmaceut	small	969.2	227.4	3418	66530.13	784.0	23.46
17	Pharmaceut	medium	6698.4	1495.4	34400	43470.93	6756.7	22.32
18	Computer	big	5956.0	412.0	56000	7357.14	4500.0	6.92
19	Pharmaceut	big	5903.7	681.1	42100	16178.15	8324.8	11.54
20	Computer	medium	2959.3	252.8	31404	8049.93	5611.1	8.54
21	Pharmaceut	small	1198.3	86.5	8527	10144.25	1791.7	7.22
22	Computer	small	990.5	20.9	8578	2436.47	624.3	2.11
23	Pharmaceut	medium	3243.0	471.3	21300	22126.76	3613.5	14.53
24	Computer	small	1382.3	0.3	2900	103.45	1076.8	0.02
25	Computer	small	1014.0	47.7	9100	5241.76	977.0	4.70
26	Computer	small	1769.2	60.8	10200	5960.78	1269.1	3.44
27	Computer	small	1643.9	118.3	9548	12390.03	1618.8	7.20
28	Computer	big	1096.9	-639.3	82300	-7767.92	10751.0	-58.28
29	Pharmaceut	medium	2916.3	176.0	20100	8756.22	3246.9	6.04
30	Computer	medium	3078.4	-424.3	28334	-14974.9	2725.7	-13.78
31	Pharmaceut	medium	4272.0	412.7	33000	12506.06	3051.6	9.66
32	Computer	big	63438.0	3758.0	383220	9806.38	77734.0	5.92

# **Selecting and Deselecting Data**

You might need to select rows, columns, or cells within a data table. For example, to create a subset table, the corresponding parts of the table must first be selected. Also, selecting rows is helpful in making data points stand out on a graph.

### Rows

Table 2.1 describes how to select and deselect rows.

Task	Action
Select rows one at a time	Click on the row number (see Figure 2.22)
Select multiple adjacent rows	Click and drag on the row numbers or Select the beginning row, then hold down the Shift key and click the last row number
Select multiple non-adjacent rows	Select the first row, then hold down the Ctrl key and click the other row numbers
Deselect rows one at a time	Hold down the Ctrl key and click the row numbers
Deselect all rows	Click in the lower-triangular space in the top left corner of the table (see Figure 2.23)

Table 2.1 Selecting and Deselecting Rows

Figure 2.22 Select a Row

	<						
Click here			Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ
to select	$\overline{\ }$	1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523
row 2		2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929
10w 2		3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200
		4	Pharmaceut	biq	6747.0	1102.2	50816

### Figure 2.23 Deselecting Rows

To deselect all rows at once, click here

•					
•	Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ
1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523
2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929
3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200
4	Pharmaceut	big	6747.0	1102.2	50816

### Columns

Table 2.2 describes how to select and deselect columns.

Task	Action
Select columns one at a time	Click the column heading. See Figure 2.24.
Select multiple adjacent columns	Click and drag across the column headings or Select the beginning column, then hold down the Shift key and click the last header
Select multiple non-adjacent columns	Select the first column, then hold down the Ctrl key and click the other column headings
Deselect columns one at a time	Hold down the Ctrl key and click the column heading
Deselect all columns	Click in the upper-triangular space in the top left corner of the table. See Figure 2.25.

### Figure 2.24 Selecting a Column

Click here	to	select	Size	Co
\				

•	Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ
1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523
2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929
3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200
4	Pharmaceut	big	6747.0	1102.2	50816

### Figure 2.25 Deselect Columns

To deselect all columns at once, click here

◆ _ ♪						
•	Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	# Employ	
1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	7523	
2	Pharmaceut	big	5453.5	859.8	40929	
3	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0	8200	
4	Pharmaceut	big	6747.0	1102.2	50816	ĺ

### 32 Preparing Data

Interacting with Data

### Cells

Table 2.3 describes how to select and deselect cells.

Table 2.3         Selecting and Deselecting Co	ells
--	------

Task	Action
Select cells one at a time	Click in the cell
Select multiple adjacent cells	Click and drag across the cells or Select the beginning cell, then hold down the Shift key and click the last cell
Select multiple non-adjacent cells	Select the first cell, then hold down the Ctrl key and click the other cells
Deselect all cells	Click in the upper and lower triangular spaces in the top left corner of the table

# **Creating Patterned Data**

You can populate a column with patterned data using the Fill features. The Fill feature is especially useful if your data table is large, and typing in the values for each row would be cumbersome.

For example, if you want to fill a column with the pattern 1,2,3,1,2,3,.... follow the steps below:

1 Typing one instance of the pattern in the top rows, as shown in Figure 2.26.

Figure 2.26 One Instance of the Pattern

%profit/sales	Pattern	
3.63	1	
15.77	2	
7.10	3	
16.34	-	
8.59	-	
7.93		

2 Select the three cells, and right-click anywhere in the selected cells. See Figure 2.27.

Figure 2.27 Fill Submenu

%profit/sales	Pattern		
3.63	1		
15.77	2		
7.10	Fill		Description of the read of table
16.34		- Tr	Casting assumes to and of table
8.59	Cut	Ĩ.	Continue sequence to end or table
7.93	Сору		Repeat sequence to
11.59	Paste	L	Continue sequence to
5.84	Clear		
-23.05			

3 Select **Repeat sequence to end of table**. This command repeats the pattern to the end of the table.

If, instead of repeating a pattern (1,2,3,1,2,3,...), you want to continue a pattern (1,2,3,4,5,6,...), select **Continue sequence to end of table**. This command can also be used to generate patterns like 1,1,1,2,2,2,3,3,3,...

The Fill options can recognize simple arithmetic and geometric sequences. For character data, the Fill features are able to repeat the values only.

# Viewing or Changing Column Information

Information about a column is not limited to the data in the column. Other information, such as data type, modeling type, format, and formulas are also important to understand. For example, JMP performs different analyses depending on the modeling type you assign to a column.

To view or change column characteristics, double-click on the column heading. You can also right-click on the column heading and select **Column Info...** The Column Info window appears. See Figure 2.28.

Figure 2.28 Column Info Window

Assets	
Vassets' in Table 'Companies' Column Name Assets	OK Cancel
Data Type Numeric  Modeling Type Continuous  Format Fixed Dec  Vidth 7 Dec 1 Column Properties	Help

The Column Info window contains these features:

- **Column Name** You can enter or change the column name by clicking in this box. The text in the box reflects what appears in the column heading. No two columns can have the same column name.
- **Data Type** Click here to choose the data type. The options are:

Numeric specifies the column values as numbers.

Character specifies the column values as non-numeric, such as letters or symbols.

Row State specifies the column values as row states. See the JMP User Guide for more details.

**Modeling Type** Click here to choose the modeling type. This tells JMP how to treat the values in an analysis. The options are:

Continuous means that the values are numeric only.

Ordinal means that the values are either numeric or character, and are ordered categories.

Nominal means that the values are either numeric or character, but not ordered.

Interacting with Data

**Format** Click here to specify the format of numeric values (this option is not available for character data). Here are some of the common formats:

Best lets JMP choose the best display format.

Fixed Dec lets you specify the number of displayed decimal places.

Date lets you choose the display and input syntax for dates.

Time is used to choose the display syntax for time values. You can also choose the input syntax.

Currency lets you choose the display syntax for currency values.

- **Column Properties** You can set special column properties such as formulas, notes, and value orders (for details see the *JMP User Guide*).
- Lock Lets you lock the column, so the values in the column cannot be changed.

# **Manipulating Data**

You can use the commands on the **Tables** menu to summarize and manipulate data. This section discusses five of the commands:

- Summary
- Tabulate
- Subset
- Join
- Sort

For complete details about these and the other Tables menu commands, see the JMP User Guide.

### **Requesting Summary Statistics**

You can create summary tables by using either the Summary or Tabulate menu items on the Tables menu.

### Summary

A table summary provides statistics for each level of a grouping variable. As an example, you can look at financial data for computer and pharmaceutical companies. Suppose you want to calculate the mean of sales and the mean of profits, for each combination of company type and size.

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Tables > Summary.
- 3 Assign Type to the Group role by performing one of the following actions:
  - Select Type in the Select Columns box, and click Group.
  - Click and drag Type to the Group box.
- 4 Assign Size Co to the Group role using the same process.
- 5 Include the mean of Sales (\$M) and the mean of Profits (\$M) in the Statistics box:
  - Select Sales (\$M) in the Select Columns box and click Statistics > Mean.

- Select Profits (\$M) in the Select Columns box and click Statistics > Mean. The completed Summary window is shown in Figure 2.29.
- 6 Click **OK**.

Figure 2.29 Summary Window

JMP calculates the mean of Sales (\$M) and the mean of Profit (\$M) for each combination of Type and Size Co. The resulting summary table is shown in Figure 2.30.

Figure 2.30 Summary Table

🛗 Companies By (Type, Size Co)							
토 Companies By (Type, Siz							<u>~</u>
💌 Source		Туре	Size Co	N Rows	Mean(Sales (\$M))	Mean(Profits (\$M))	
	1	Computer	big	4	20597.48	1089.93	
	2	Computer	medium	2	3018.85	-85.75	
	3	Computer	small	14	1758.06	44.94	
Columns (5/0)	4	Pharmaceut	big	5	7474.04	894.42	
🔥 Type 角	5	Pharmaceut	medium	5	4261.06	698.98	
II. Size Co	6	Pharmaceut	small	2	1083.75	156.95	
🔺 N ROWS 🚍 🔺 Mean(Sales (\$M)) 🚇							
🔺 Mean(Cares (@M)) 🖨							
▼Rows							
All rows 6							
Selected 0							
Excluded 0							
Hidden 0							×
Labelled O	<						2

The summary table contains the following:

• There are columns for each grouping variable (in this example Type and Size Co).

### 36 Preparing Data

Interacting with Data

- The N Rows column shows the number of rows from the original table corresponding to that combination of grouping variables. For example, the original data table contains 14 rows corresponding to small computer companies.
- There is a column for each summary statistic requested. In this example, there is a column for the mean of Sales (\$M) and one for the mean of Profits (\$M).

The summary table is linked to the source table. Click on a row in the summary table to select the corresponding rows in the source table.

### Tabulate

Using the Tabulate menu, you can drag columns into a workspace, creating summary statistics for each combination of grouping variables. As an example, you can look at financial data for computer and pharmaceutical companies. Suppose you want to calculate the mean of sales and the mean of profits, for each combination of company type and size.

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Tables > Tabulate. Figure 2.31 shows the workspace.

Figure 2.31 Tabulate Workspace

Build table using Inte To use the interactive Control Panel	eractive table 🗸 e table, drag names	from either list to a dro	p zone.
<ul> <li>type</li> <li>Size Co</li> <li>Sales (\$M)</li> <li>Profits (\$M)</li> <li># Employ</li> <li>profit/employ</li> <li>Assets</li> <li>% profit/sales</li> </ul>	N Mean Std Dev Min Max Range % of Total N Missing Sum Sum Wgt Variance Std Err CV Median Quantiles All	Drop zone for rows	Resulting Cells
Change Format Include missing for Order by count of g Show tool tip Show Shading	or grouping columns grouping columns		

- 3 Select both Type and Size Co.
- 4 Drag them to the Drop zone for rows. See Figure 2.32. Select Add Grouping Columns.

The tabulation gives the number of rows per group. See Figure 2.33.





Figure 2.33 Initial Tabulation

Туре	Size Co	Ν
Computer	big	4
	medium	2
	small	14
Pharmaceut	big	5
	medium	5
	small	2

- 5 Select both Sales (\$M) and Profits (\$M).
- 6 Drag them over the N in the table. See Figure 2.34. Select Add Analysis Columns.

Figure 2.34 Adding Sales and Profit



The tabulation gives the sum of Sales (\$M) and the sum of Profits (\$M) per group. See Figure 2.35. The final step is to change the sums to means.

### 38 Preparing Data

Interacting with Data

### Figure 2.35 Tabulation of Sums

		Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)
Туре	Size Co	Sum	Sum
Computer	big	82389.9	4359.7
	medium	6037.7	-171.5
	small	24612.8	629.1
Pharmaceut	big	37370.2	4472.1
	medium	21305.3	3494.9
	small	2167.5	313.9

7 Right-click on **Sum** and select **Statistics** > **Mean**. The sums are replaced by the means for each group. See Figure 2.36.

Figure 2.36 Final Tabulation

		Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)
Туре	Size Co	Mean	Mean
Computer	big	20597.48	1089.9
	medium	3018.85	-85.75
	small	1758.06	44.94
Pharmaceut	big	7474.04	894.42
	medium	4261.06	698.98
	small	1083.75	156.95

The means are the same as those obtained using Tables > Summary. See Figure 2.30.

### **Creating Subsets**

You can create a subset of data by extracting portions of a data table into a new table. This can be helpful if you have a large data table, and are interested in examining rows that are scattered randomly throughout the table. It is easier to examine all those rows together in one place and in a smaller table.

Creating a subset is a two-step process. You select the target data, and then extract the data into a new table.

As an example, you can look at financial data for big, medium, and small companies. Suppose you are interested in creating a data table that has only the medium companies. In other words, you want to create a subset of the main table, consisting only of those rows for which Size Co is medium. Also, you want only the Sales (\$M), Profits (\$M), and Type columns in the subset table.

To create the subset, follow these steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select the rows that correspond to males:
  - Select Rows > Row Selection > Select Where.
  - Select Size Co in the column list box on the left.
  - Enter medium in the text enter box.
  - Click OK.
- 3 Select the Type, Sales (\$M), and Profits (\$M) columns.
- 4 Extract the selected cells into a new table:
  - Select Tables > Subset to launch the Subset window. See Figure 2.37.

### - Click OK.

The resulting data table has 7 rows and 3 columns. See Figure 2.38. For complete details about the Subset window, see the *JMP User Guide*.

Figure 2.37 Subset Window

Creates a new data table from the selected rows and columns of the source data table.

Figure 2.38 Resulting Subset Table

•				
•	Туре	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)	
1	Pharmaceut	4175.6	939.5	
2	Pharmaceut	6698.4	1495.4	
3	Computer	2959.3	252.8	
4	Pharmaceut	3243.0	471.3	
5	Pharmaceut	2916.3	176.0	
6	Computer	3078.4	-424.3	
7	Pharmaceut	4272.0	412.7	

Another way to create simple subsets uses the connection between platform results and data tables. For example, to create a subset of the Computer companies using Companies.jmp, first use the **Distribution** platform to create a histogram of the column Type. Then double-click on the histogram bar corresponding to Computer, and a subset table of the Computer companies is created.

#### 40 **Preparing Data** Interacting with Data

E Contraction of the second seco	Compa	nies- Distrib	ution of Ty	pe		[	
	🗖 Dist	ributions					
	🕈 🛡 Ту	/pe					
			-		♥ Freque	ncies	Í
					Level	Count	Prob
					Computer	20	0.62500
		/			Pharmace	ut 12	0.37500
		Computer	Pharma	iceut	N Missing	J∠ ∩	1.00000
/	`└ <b>─</b> ∢	>_` ♥		I 1			_
Double-click on the			Type	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Drofite (\$M)	
			1900	5120 00	Scies ( \$M)	Fronce (#M)	
Computer bar to		1	Computer	small	855.1	31.0	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1	Computer Computer	small small	855.1 2153.7	31.0 153.0	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3	Computer Computer Computer	small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0	31.0 153.0 454.0	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4	Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4 5	Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1 709.3	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3 41.4	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4 5 6	Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1 709.3 2952.1	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3 41.4 -680.4	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7	Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1 709.3 2952.1 784.7	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3 41.4 -680.4 89.0	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small small small small small	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1 709.3 2952.1 784.7 1324.3	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3 41.4 -680.4 89.0 -119.7	
Computer bar to create the subset table		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 9	Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer Computer	small small small small small small small big	855.1 2153.7 5284.0 2876.1 709.3 2952.1 784.7 1324.3 11899.0	31.0 153.0 454.0 333.3 41.4 -680.4 89.0 -119.7 829.0	

Figure 2.39 Double-Click on Bar to Create Subset Table

**Caution:** This method creates a *linked* subset table. This means if you make any changes to the data in the subset table, the corresponding value changes in the source table.

### **Joining Data Tables**

You can combine information from multiple data tables into a single data table. For example, suppose you have a data table that contains students' names, ages, and sexes. In another table, you have the students' names, heights, and weights. To perform an analysis involving age and height, you need to have the data in the same table. Also, the students are not listed in the same order in both tables, making a simple copy and paste impossible.

The sample data tables for this example are called Students1.jmp and Students2.jmp. See Figure 2.40. The columns of interest are age and height, but they are in different tables. Both tables have the column name, and that column can be used to join the tables into one.

E Students1	Students1						🖩 Students2					
Students1     ■		name	age	sex	^		Students2		name	height	weight	
	1	KATIE	11	F				1	KATIE	56	85	
💌 Columns (3/0)	2	TIM	11	F			Columns (3/0)	2	LOUISE	57	69	
🔥 name	3	LOUISE	11	F			🔥 name	3	JACLYN	62	104	
🞿 age	4	JEFFREY	11	M			⊿ height	4	JUDY	61	85	
🔥 sex	5	JANE	11	F			🚄 weight	5	LILLIE	51	51	
	6	JACLYN	11	F				6	TIM	62	85	
Rows	7	ALICE	11	F			Rows	7	JAMES	54	81	
All rows 233	8	JAMES	11	F			All rows 233	8	ROBERT	58	96	
Selected (	9	ROBERT	11	F			Selected 0	9	ALICE	56	84	
Excluded 0	10	BARBARA	11	F	=		EXCluded U	10	BARBARA	53	64	
Hidden 0	11	CAROL	11	M			U helled	11	PATTY	57	84	
Labelled (	12	SUSAN	11	F			Lubened 0	12	SUSAN	60	77	
	12		11	E				12		50	70	

Figure 2.40 Tables to be Joined

To join the tables, follow these steps:

- 1 Open the Students1.jmp and Students2.jmp data tables.
- 2 Click on Students1.jmp making it the active table.
- 3 Select Tables > Join.
- 4 In the Join...With box select Students2.
- 5 In the Matching Specification panel, select By Matching Columns if it is not already selected.
- 6~ In the Source Columns boxes, select name in both boxes, and then click Match.
- 7 Both tables have duplicate rows, and you do not want to include those, so check **Drop Multiples** for both Main Table and With Table. Figure 2.41 shows the completed window.
- 8 Click OK.

Figure 2.41 Completed Join Window

H Join		
Join rows from several	sources by matching value.	
Join 'Students1' with Students2 Students1  Students1  th.name age th.sex	Options       Action         ○ Update first table with data from second table       OK         ○ Merge same name columns       Cancel         ♥ Copy formula       Remove         ♥ Suppress formula evaluation       Recall         ■ Matching Specification       Recall         ■ Match columns       Help         ● Match columns       Output table	le name:
Students2 Inname height weight optional Keep dialog open	Main Table With Table Drop multiples  V Include non-matches Output Columns Select columns for joined table	

Figure 2.42 shows the new joined table.

# 42 Preparing Data

Interacting with Data

Untitled 12	♦							
<ul> <li>Source</li> </ul>	•	name of Students1	age	sex	name of Students2	height	weight	
	1	ALFRED	11	М	ALFRED	59	87	
Columns (6/0)	2	ALICE	11	F	ALICE	56	84	[
IL name of Students1	3	AMY	11	M	AMY	55	74	
🞿 age	4	BARBARA	11	F	BARBARA	53	64	
💼 sex	5	CAROL	11	M	CAROL	60	95	
name of Students2	6	CHRIS	11	M	CHRIS	58	85	[
🚄 height	7	CLAY	12	F	CLAY	63	108	ſ
weight	8	DANNY	12	F	DANNY	59	89	
	9	DAVID	11	F	DAVID	56	73	ſ
Rows	10	EDWARD	11	M	EDWARD	58	101	ſ
All rows 39	11	ELIZABETH	11	M	ELIZABETH	61	87	ľ
Selected U	12	FREDERICK	11	М	FREDERICK	58	75	ľ
Excluded U	13	HENRY	11	М	HENRY	55	70	ľ
Labelled 0	14	JACLYN	11	F	JACLYN	62	104	ľ
Labelled 0	15		11	c		54	01	ľ

Figure 2.42 Joined Table

No two columns in a data table can have the same header. Because both original tables contain a column called name, JMP renames those columns in the final table. For example, the column name from the Students1 table becomes name of Students1, and the same for Students2. You can delete one of the name columns, and change the title of the other one back to name.

**Tip:** The **Select columns for joined table** option on the Join window lets you choose which columns appear in the final table, negating the need for JMP to change the names. See the *JMP User Guide* for details.

### **Sorting Tables**

You can sort a data table by one or more columns in the data table. As an example, you can look at financial data for computer and pharmaceutical companies. Suppose you want to sort the data table by Type, then by Profits (\$M). Additionally, you want Profits (\$M) to be descending within each Type.

To sort the table, do the following:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Tables > Sort.
- 3 To assign Type as a sorting variable, select Type and click By.
- 4 Assign Profits (\$M) as a sorting variable by the same process.

At this point, both variables are set to be sorted in ascending order. See the ascending icon next to the variables in Figure 2.43.

### Figure 2.43 Sort Ascending Icons

Ascending icon	
Sort rows by specified columns.	ction OK Cancel Recall Help

5 To change Profits (\$M) to sort in descending order, select Profits (\$M) and click the descending button. See Figure 2.44. The icon next to Profits (\$M) changes to descending.

Figure 2.44 Change Profits to Descending



- Descending button
- 6 Check the **Replace Table** check box. When checked, this option tells JMP to sort the original data table instead of creating a new table with the sorted values. This option is not available if there are any open report windows created from the original data table. The completed sort window is shown in Figure 2.45.
- 7 Click **OK**. Figure 2.46 shows a portion of the sorted table.

Figure 2.45 Completed Sort Window

Sort rows by spec	ified columns.	Action
L Type Size Co	By ≜Type ▼Profits (\$M)	OK
Sales (\$M) Profits (\$M) # Employ		
Assets	l≜ IĪ	Help
▲%profit/sales		<u> </u>
Replace table		
🔲 Keep dialog open		

### 44 Preparing Data

Interacting with Data

Figure 2.46 Sorted Table

_	Туре	Size Co	Sales (\$M)	Profits (\$M)
1	Computer	big	63438.0	3758.0
2	Computer	big	11899.0	829.0
3	Computer	small	5284.0	454.0
4	Computer	big	5956.0	412.0
5	Computer	small	2876.1	333.3
6	Computer	medium	2959.3	252.8
7	Computer	small	2153.7	153.0
8	Computer	small	1643.9	118.3
9	Computer	small	784.7	89.0
10	Computer	small	873.6	79.5
11	Computer	small	1769.2	60.8
12	Computer	small	1014.0	47.7
13	Computer	small	709.3	41.4
14	Computer	small	855.1	31.0
15	Computer	small	990.5	20.9
16	Computer	small	1382.3	0.3
17	Computer	small	1324.3	-119.7
18	Computer	medium	3078.4	-424.3
19	Computer	big	1096.9	-639.3
20	Computer	small	2952.1	-680.4
21	Pharmaceut	medium	6698.4	1495.4
22	Pharmaceut	big	6747.0	1102.2
23	Pharmaceut	big	9844.0	1082.0
24	Pharmaceut	medium	4175.6	939.5

## **Filtering Data**

Using the **Data Filter** commands and options, you can interactively select complex subsets of data, hide these subsets in plots, or exclude them from analyses. As an example, you can look at profit per employee for computer and pharmaceutical companies.

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign profit/emp to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 2.47 shows the distribution results.

Figure 2.47 Distribution of profit/emp

Distributions					
🕈 💌 profit/emp					
	🕈 Quan	tiles		▼ Moments	
· · · · · · ·	100.0%	maximum	66530.1	Mean	12679.18
	99.5%		66530.1	Std Dev	18382.173
	97.5%		66530.1	Std Err Mean	3249.5399
	90.0%		36859.4	Upper 95% Mean	19306.66
	75.0%	quartile	20481.3	Lower 95% Mean	6051.6998
	50.0%	median	9975.31	N	32
	25.0%	quartile	5421.51		
40000 0 20000 60000	10.0%		-8428.6		
	2.5%		-37800		
	0.5%		-37800		
	0.0%	minimum	-37800		

- 5 Turn on Automatic Recalc by clicking on the red triangle menu next to **Distributions**, and selecting **Script > Automatic Recalc**.
- 6 Select Rows > Data Filter.
- 7 Select Type and click Add.
- 8 Uncheck Select and check Include. Figure 2.48 shows the Data Filter window.

Figure 2.48 Data Filter on Type

🕈 🖻 Data Filter
Clear
🗖 Select 🔲 Show 🗹 Include
Туре
Computer Pharmaceut
+ Start Over

9 To filter out the Pharmaceutical companies from the Distribution results, and include only the Computer companies, click the **Computer** box on the Data Filter window. See Figure 2.49. The distribution results change to only include Computer companies. See Figure 2.50.

Figure 2.49 Click the Computer Box



Figure 2.50 Distribution for Computer Companies

🗢 profit/emp					
	🕈 Quan	tiles		Moments	
· ·····	100.0%	maximum	37620.2	Mean	6159.0154
	99.5%		37620.2	Std Dev	16344.287
	97.5%		37620.2	Std Err Mean	3654.6936
	90.0%		33466.2	Upper 95% Mean	13808.377
	75.0%	quartile	11744.1	Lower 95% Mean	-1490.346
	50.0%	median	7703.54	N	20
	25.0%	quartile	686.703		
-40000 - 20000 ' 0 10000 ' 30000 '	10.0%		-14349		
	2.5%		-37800		
	0.5%		-37800		
	0.0%	minimum	-37800		

To change the Distribution results to include only the Pharmaceutical companies, click the **Pharmaceut** button on the Data Filter window.

# **Calculating Values Using Formulas**

Using the formula editor, you can create columns that contain calculated values.

### Scenario

As an example of using the formula editor, use the sample data table On-Time Arrivals.jmp. This data reflects the percent of on-time arrivals for several airlines, measured in March, June, and August of 1999. See Figure 2.51.

Figure 2.51 On-Time Arrivals Data

	Airline	March 1999	June 1999	August 1999	
1	TWA	84.4	69.4	85	
2	Southwest	80.3	77	80.4	
3	Northwest	80.8	75.1	81	
4	American	72.7	65.1	78.3	
5	Delta	78.7	72.2	77.7	
6	Continental	79.3	68.4	75.1	
7	United	78.6	69.2	71.6	
8	US Airways	73.6	68.9	70.1	
9	Alaska	71.9	75.4	64.4	
10	American West	76.5	70.3	62.5	

### **Creating the Formula**

Suppose you want to create a new column that contains the average on-time percent for each airline. Follow these steps:

1 Create a new column by double-clicking to the right of the last column. Enter a column name. See Figure 2.52.

Figure 2.52 Creating a New Column

	New column					
•	Airline	March 1999	June 1999	August 1999	Average	
1	TWA	84.4	69.4	85	-	
2	Southwest	80.3	77	80.4	•	
3	Northwest	80.8	75.1	81	•	
4	American	727	65.1	78 3		

2 Right-click on the column heading of the new column and select **Formula**. The Formula Editor window opens. See Figure 2.53.



Figure 2.53 Formula Editor

Create the formula for the average:

- 3 From the Table Columns list, select March 1999.
- 4 Click the 🖶 button.
- 5 Select June 1999, followed by another 🖶 sign.

6 Select August 1999. At this point, the formula looks like the one shown in Figure 2.54.

Figure 2.54 Sum of the Months

March 1999 + June 1999 + August 1999

Notice that only August 1999 is selected (has the red box around it).

7 Click on the box surrounding the entire formula. The red box now surrounds the entire formula as shown in Figure 2.55.

Figure 2.55 Entire Formula Selected

March 1999 + June 1999 + August 1999

- 8 Click the 🗟 button.
- 9 Type a 3 in the denominator box, and then click outside the formula in any of the white space. The finished formula is shown in Figure 2.56.

N

Figure 2.56 Finished Formula

[March 1999 + June 1999 + August 1999] 3

10 Click  $\mathsf{OK}.$  The new column is populated with the averages. See Figure 2.57.

Figure 2.57 New Column Showing Averages

	Airline	March 1999	June 1999	August 1999	Average	
1	TWA	84.4	69.4	85	79.6	
2	Southwest	80.3	77	80.4	79.2333333	
3	Northwest	80.8	75.1	81	78.9666667	
4	American	72.7	65.1	78.3	72.0333333	
5	Delta	78.7	72.2	77.7	76.2	
6	Continental	79.3	68.4	75.1	74.2666667	
7	United	78.6	69.2	71.6	73.1333333	
8	US Airways	73.6	68.9	70.1	70.8666667	
9	Alaska	71.9	75.4	64.4	70.5666667	
10	American West	76.5	70.3	62.5	69.7666667	

The Formula Editor has many built-in arithmetic and statistical functions. For example, another way to calculate the average on-time arrival percentage is to use the **Mean()** function on the Statistical functions list. Figure 2.58 shows the Mean() function for calculating the average on-time arrival percentage.

Figure 2.58 Mean Function

Mean March 1999, June 1999, August 1999

This is just a basic example of what you can do with the Formula Editor. For details about all the Formula Editor functions, see the *JMP User Guide*.

# Chapter 3

# Visualizing Your Data Graphing Data

Visualizing your data should always be the first step in any analysis. One of JMP's primary strengths is the ability it gives you to visualize and interact with your data. You do not have to be a statistician to get information and intelligence from your data. Using JMP, you can explore relationships, follow the trends, dig into areas that interest you, and be led in new directions.

Figure 3.1 Visualizing Data with JMP



# Contents

About This Chapter
Using Single Variable Graphs
Histograms
Bar Charts
Using Multiple Variable Graphs
Scatterplots
Scatterplot Matrix
Side-by-Side Box Plots
Overlay Plots
Variability Chart
Graph Builder
Bubble Plots

# About This Chapter

This chapter presents several of the most common graphs and plots that enable you to visualize and explore data in JMP. This chapter is an introduction to JMP's graphical tools and platforms. You can use JMP to visualize the distribution of single variables, or the relationships among multiple variables.

Single variable graphs include the following:

- "Histograms," p. 51
- "Bar Charts," p. 53

Multiple variable graphs include the following:

- "Scatterplots," p. 56
- "Scatterplot Matrix," p. 59
- "Side-by-Side Box Plots," p. 62
- "Overlay Plots," p. 64
- "Variability Chart," p. 67
- "Graph Builder," p. 69
- "Bubble Plots," p. 72

**Note**: This is not an exhaustive list of the graphical capabilities in JMP. For details about JMP's graphical tools and platforms, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.

# **Using Single Variable Graphs**

This section covers two graphs you can use to visualize the distribution of a single variable:

- "Histograms," p. 51
- "Bar Charts," p. 53

You can create both of these graphs using the **Distribution** platform.

# Histograms

Figure 3.2 Example of a Histogram



The histogram is one of the most useful graphical tools for understanding the distribution of a continuous variable. Histograms enable you to do the following:

#### 52 Visualizing Your Data

Using Single Variable Graphs

- Quickly assess the average value and variation in your data.
- Find extreme values in your data.

### Scenario

To use a histogram, look at sample data for a group of companies. The information includes financial data for each company. For this example, you focus on profits.

Using a histogram, you want to answer these questions:

- Generally, how much profit do the companies earn?
- What is the average profit?
- Are there any outliers?

### **Creating the Histogram**

To answer your questions, create a histogram of Profits (\$M):

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Profits (\$M) to the Y, Columns role. Figure 3.3 shows the completed window.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 3.4 shows the histogram.

Figure 3.3 Distribution Window for Profits (\$M)

E Distribution		
The distribution of values in eac	h column	
Select Columns	Cast Selected Columns into Roles	Action
L Type L Size Co ▲ Sales (\$M) ▲ Profits (\$M)	Y, Columns Profits (\$M)	OK Cancel
▲# Employ ▲profit/emp	Weight optional numeric	Remove
▲Assets ▲%profit/sales	Freq Optional numeric	Recall
	By optional	Help

Figure 3.4 Histogram of Profits (\$M)



### Interpreting the Histogram

The histogram provides these answers:

- Most companies profits are between \$-1000 and \$1500.
- The average profit is approximately \$500.
- One company has significantly higher profits than the others, and might be an outlier. An outlier is a data point that is separated from the general pattern of the other students.

### Interacting with the Histogram

Click on a histogram bar to select the corresponding rows in the data table. See Figure 3.5.

Figure 3.5 Selecting Rows



011 1		1			1		1.	
Click	on a	a bar	to	select	the	correspon	ding	row.
0		- Our		001000		concopon		10

In addition to the histogram, you can also see the following:

- The box plot, which is another graphical summary of the data. For detailed information about the box plot, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.
- Quantiles and Moments outlines (for details, see "Continuous Variables," p. 85).

## **Bar Charts**

Figure 3.6 Example of a Bar Chart



You can use a bar chart to visualize the distribution of a categorical variable. A bar chart looks similar to a histogram, since they both have bars that correspond to the levels of a variable. However, unlike a histogram, a bar chart shows a bar for every level of the variable.

### Scenario

To use a bar chart, look at sample data for a group of companies. The information includes financial data for each company. For this example, focus on the type and size of the company.

Using a bar chart, you want to answer these questions:

- What is the most common type of company?
- What is the most common size of company?

### **Creating the Bar Chart**

To answer your questions, create bar charts of Type and Size Co:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Type and Size Co to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 3.7 shows the bar charts.

Figure 3.7 Bar Charts of Type and Size Co



### Interpreting the Bar Charts

From the bar chart you can see that there are more computer than pharmaceutical companies, and that the most common company size is small. The additional summary output gives detailed frequencies.

## Interacting with the Bar Charts

As is the case with histograms, you can click on individual bars to highlight rows of the data table. Also, if more than one graph is created (as in Figure 3.7), clicking on a bar in one bar chart highlights the corresponding bar or bars in the other bar chart. For example, suppose you want to visualize the distribution of company size for the pharmaceutical companies. Click on the pharmaceutical bar in the Type bar chart, and the pharmaceutical companies are highlighted on the Size Co bar chart. See Figure 3.8. Also note that the corresponding rows in the data table are selected.

Figure 3.8 Clicking Bars



# Using Multiple Variable Graphs

You can use multiple variable graphs to visualize the relationships and patterns between two or more variables. The graphs covered in this section include the following:

- "Scatterplots," p. 56
- "Scatterplot Matrix," p. 59
- "Side-by-Side Box Plots," p. 62
- "Overlay Plots," p. 64
- "Variability Chart," p. 67
- "Graph Builder," p. 69
- "Bubble Plots," p. 72

#### 56 **Visualizing Your Data** Using Multiple Variable Graphs

# Scatterplots

Figure 3.9 Example of a Scatterplot



The scatterplot is the simplest of all the multiple variable graphs. You can use it to assess the relationship between two continuous variables. It is always the first step in assessing whether a correlation exists between two continuous variables. This section uses the Companies.jmp data.

### Scenario

To use a scatterplot, look at sample data for a group of companies. The information includes financial data for each company. For this example, focus on sales and number of employees.

Using a bar chart, you want to answer these questions:

- What is the relationship between sales and the number of employees?
- Does sales increase with the number of employees?
- Can you predict average sales from the number of employees?

### **Creating the Scatterplot**

To answer your questions, create a scatterplot of Sales (\$M) versus # Employ by doing the following:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign Sales (\$M) to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign # Employ to the X, Factor role. Figure 3.10 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click OK. Figure 3.11 shows the scatterplot.

### Figure 3.10 Fit Y by X Window

Chapter 3

🗴 Fit Y by X - Contextual			
Distribution of Y for each X. Mode	ling types detern	nine analysis.	
- Select Columns	Cast Selecter	d Columns into Roles	-Action
ul. Type ul. Size Co ⊿Sales (\$M) ⊿Profits (\$M)	Y, Response	A Sales (\$M) optional	OK Cancel
<ul> <li># Employ</li> <li>profit/emp</li> <li>Assets</li> <li>% profit/sales</li> </ul>	X, Factor	d # Employ optional	Remove Recall
Bivariate	Block	optional	
	Weight	optional numeric	
Bivariate Oneway	Freq	optional numeric	
	Ву	optional	
Logistic Contingency			
🔺 that			

Figure 3.11 Scatterplot of Sales (\$M) versus # Employ

Ŷ	🛡 Bivaria	te Fit of	Sales (\$I	M) By # E	mploy
	70000-				
	60000-				•
	50000-				
	€ 40000-				
	ale 30000-				
	20000-				
	10000-				
	0-	4			
	Ċ	50000 '	150000	250000	350000
			#Em	nploy	

### Interpreting the Scatterplot

There is one company that has a large number of employees and high sales. The data point representing this company makes it difficult to visualize the relationship between the variables. Remove the point from the plot and recreate the plot by taking the following steps:

- 1 Click on the point to select it.
- 2 Select Rows > Exclude/Unexclude. The data point is no longer included in calculations.
- 3 Select Rows > Hide/Unhide. The data point is hidden on all graphs.
- 4 On the bivariate red triangle menu, select Script > Redo Analysis.

The plot is recreated without the outlier. See Figure 3.12.

# 58 **Visualizing Your Data**

Figure 3.12 Outlier Removed



The scatterplot provides these answers:

- There is a relationship between the sales and the number of employees.
- Sales do increase with the number of employees, and the relationship is linear.
- You can predict average sales from the number of employees.

### Interacting with the Scatterplot

As with other JMP graphics, the scatterplot is interactive. Hover over the point in the bottom right corner with the mouse to reveal the row number (in this example, 28). See Figure 3.13.

Figure 3.13 Hover Over a Point



Click on a point to highlight the corresponding row in the data table. To select multiple points, do one of the following:

- Click and drag with the mouse around the points. This method enables you to select a rectangular region only.
- Use the lasso tool, shown in Figure 3.14. Select the lasso tool, and then click and drag around multiple points. See Figure 3.15. The lasso tool enables you to select an irregular-shaped region.

Figure 3.14 Lasso Tool







16	Pharmaceut	small	969.2	227.4
17	Pharmaceut	medium	6698.4	1495.4
18	Computer	big	5956.0	412.0
19	Pharmaceut	big	5903.7	681.1
20	Computer	medium	2959.3	252.8
21	Pharmaceut	small	1198.3	86.5
22	Computer	small	990.5	20.9
23	Pharmaceut	medium	3243.0	471.3
24	Computer	small	1382.3	0.3
25	Computer	small	1014.0	47.7
26	Computer	small	1769.2	60.8
27	Computer	small	1643.9	118.3
28	Computer	big	1096.9	-639.3
29	Pharmaceut	medium	2916.3	176.0
-30	Computer	medium	3078.4	-424.3
-31	Pharmaceut	medium	4272.0	412.7
32	Computer	big	63438.0	3758.0
-				

The corresponding rows are selected

# **Scatterplot Matrix**

Figure 3.16 Example of a Scatterplot Matrix



A scatterplot matrix is a collection of scatterplots organized into a grid (or matrix). Each scatterplot shows the relationship between a pair of variables. This plot enables you to quickly compare multiple variables at once.

### Scenario

To show the use of a scatterplot matrix, look at data for chemical compounds. The chemical compounds were measured for solubility in different solvents. Using a scatterplot matrix, you want to answer these questions:

### 60 Visualizing Your Data

Using Multiple Variable Graphs

- Is there a relationship between any pair of variables?
- Which variables have the strongest relationship?

### **Creating the Scatterplot Matrix**

To answer your questions, create a scatterplot matrix using Ether, Chloroform, Benzene, and Hexane:

- 1 Open the Solubility.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Scatterplot Matrix.
- 3 Assign Ether, Chloroform, Benzene, and Hexane to the Y, Columns role. Figure 3.17 shows the completed window.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 3.18 shows the scatterplot matrix.

Figure 3.17 Scatterplot Matrix Window

A Scatterplot Matrix		
Scatterplots of all pairs of Y variable	s, or all X-Y pairs if X's sp Cost Selected Column	ecified
Labels 1-Octanol Ether Chloroform	Y, Columns Ether Chlorot Hexane	form 1e 3
ABenzene Carbon Tetrachloride Hexane	x optional	Remove
Matrix Format Lower Triangular 🗸	Group	
	By optional	

Figure 3.18 Scatterplot Matrix



### Interpreting the Scatterplot Matrix

The scatterplot matrix shows these answers:

- All six pairs of variables are positively correlated. That is, as one variable increases, the other variable increases too.
- The strongest relationship appears to be between Benzene and Chloroform.

### Interacting with the Scatterplot Matrix

If you select a point in one scatterplot, it gets selected in all other scatterplots. For example, if you select a point in the Benzene versus Chloroform scatterplot, the same point gets highlighted in the other five plots. See Figure 3.19.





scatterplots.

Visualizing Your Data

ω

# Side-by-Side Box Plots

Figure 3.20 Example of Side-by-Side Box Plots



Side-by-side box plots show you the relationship between one continuous variable and one categorical variable. You can assess differences in the continuous variable across levels of the categorical variable.

### Scenario

To show the use of side-by-side box plots, use data consisting of pain measurements taken on patients using three different drugs. You want to answer the following questions:

- Are there differences in the average pain between the drugs?
- Are there differences in the variability in pain between the drugs?

### **Creating the Side-by-Side Box Plots**

To answer your questions, create side-by-side box plots:

- 1 Open the Analgesics.jmp data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign pain to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign drug to the X, Factor role. Figure 3.21 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click OK.
- 6 Click on the red triangle <sup>™</sup>, and select **Display Options** > **Box Plots**. Figure 3.22 shows the side-by-side box plots.
## Figure 3.21 Fit Y by X Window

🛃 Fit Y by X - Contextual					
Distribution of Y for each X. Modeling types determine analysis.					
Select Columns	Cast Selecte	d Columns into Roles —	Action		
ll gender ll drug ⊿pain	Y, Response	<b>⊿ pain</b> optional	OK Cancel		
Oneway	X, Factor	<b>d. drug</b> optional	Remove		
Bivariate Oneway	Block	optional	Recall		
	Weight	optional numeric	Help		
Logistic Contingency	Freq	optional numeric			
	Ву	optional			

Figure 3.22 Side-by-Side Box Plots



## Interpreting the Side-by-Side Box Plots

The box plots are designed according to the following principles:

- The line through the box represents the median.
- The middle half of the data is within the boxes.
- The majority of the data falls between the ends of the whiskers.
- A data point outside the whiskers might be an outlier.
- Drug B appears to have higher variability than Drugs A and C.

There is evidence to believe that patients on drug A feel less pain, since the box plot for drug A is lower than the others. Drug B appears to have higher variability than Drugs A and C, since the box plot is taller. There is one point for drug C that is a lot lower than the other drug C points. Hover over it with your mouse (see Figure 3.23) to see that it is row 26 of the data table. That point looks like it is more similar to the data in drug group A or B. The information in row 26 deserves investigation. There might have been a typographical error when the data was recorded.

#### 64 **Visualizing Your Data** Using Multiple Variable Graphs

#### Figure 3.23 Hovering Over the Outlier



## **Overlay Plots**

Figure 3.24 Example of an Overlay Plot



Like scatterplots, overlay plots show the relationship between two or more variables. However, if one of the variables is time, the overlay plot does a better job at showing any trends in your data.

**Note**: To plot data over time, you can also use Graph Builder, bubble plots, control charts, and variability charts. For complete details, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.

## Scenario

To show the use of an overlay plot, look at stock price data for a three month period. Using the overlay plot, you want to answer the following questions:

- Has the closing stock price changed over the last three months?
- How do the high and low stock prices relate to each other?

## **Creating the Overlay Plot**

To answer your questions, create the overlay plots:

- 1 Open the Stock Prices.jmp data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Overlay Plot.

- 3 Assign Close to the Y role.
- 4 Assign Date to the X role. Figure 3.25 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click **OK**. Figure 3.26 shows the overlay plot.

Figure 3.25 Overlay Plot Window

NO Overlay Plot		
The Plot of Y as X varies continue	pusly	
Select Columns	Cast Selected Columns into Roles	-Action-
Date Open High	Y Close optional numeric	OK Cancel
Low Close Volume	Left Scale/Right Scale	Remove
Adj. Close* YearWeek	X A Date Grouping Optional	Recall Help
Options Sort X		
Left Y Log Scale	By optional	

Figure 3.26 Overlay Plot of Close



## Interpreting and Interacting with the Overlay Plot

The overlay plot indicates that the closing stock price has been decreasing over the last several months. To see the trend more clearly, you can take the following actions:

- Connect the points with a line
- Add grid lines

To connect the points with a line, click the red triangle, and select **Connect Thru Missing**. To add grid lines, double-click on the Y axis, and check the box for Major Gridlines. Figure 3.27 shows the connected points and grid lines.

#### 66 Visualizing Your Data

Using Multiple Variable Graphs

Figure 3.27 Connected Points and Grid Lines



## **Plotting Multiple Y Variables**

More than one Y variable can be plotted on an overlay plot. For example, suppose you want to see both high and low price on the same plot. Follow the steps in "Creating the Overlay Plot," p. 64, this time assigning both High and Low to the Y role. Connect the points and add grid lines. Figure 3.28 shows the completed overlay plot.

Figure 3.28 Two Y Variables



The legend at the bottom of the plot distinguishes the High and Low variables. From the overlay plot, you can see that the High price and Low price track each other very well.

## **Variability Chart**

Figure 3.29 Example of a Variability Chart



In the graphs described so far, you can specify only a single X variable. Using a variability chart, you can specify multiple X variables. Using multiple X variables enables you to assess differences in means and variability across all the variables at once.

## Scenario

To use a variability chart, look at sample data from a popcorn maker. Yield (volume of popcorn for a given measure of kernels) was measured for each combination of popcorn style, batch size, and oil amount. The popcorn maker is interested in the following question: Which combination of factors results in the highest popcorn yield?

## **Creating the Variability Chart**

To answer the question, do the following:

- 1 Open the Popcorn.jmp data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Variability/Gauge Chart.
- 3 Assign yield to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign popcorn, batch, and oil amt, in that order, to the X, Grouping role. The order you assign the variables to the role is important, as it determines the order they appear on the variability chart. Figure 3.30 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click OK. Figure 3.31 shows the variability chart.

### 68 Visualizing Your Data

#### Figure 3.30 Variability Chart Window

H <sup>il</sup> Variability/Gauge (Multiva	ıri Chart)			
Select Columns	Cast Selected	Columns into Roles		Action
th.popcorn th.oil amt th.batch _yield	Y,Response	yield optional numeric		OK Cancel
<b>⊿</b> trial	Standard	optional		Remove
Chart Type Variability 🗸	X, Grouping	th popcorn th batch th oil amt		Recall
Model Type		optional		
Decide Later 🗸	Freq	optional numeric		
Options	Part,Sample ID	optional		
Analysis Settings	Ву	optional		
	Operator, Instrur	nent are examples of poss	sible Grouping Cols	

Figure 3.31 Results Window



### Interpreting the Variability Chart

The top chart is the variability chart, and shows the yield broken down by each combination of the three variables. The bottom chart shows the standard deviation for each combination of the three variables. To hide this chart, click on the red triangle and deselect **Std Dev Chart**.

To answer the popcorn maker's question, look at the top chart showing yield. This chart shows that small gourmet batches produce the highest yield. To be more specific, you might ask the question: Is the yield high because those batches are small, or because those batches are gourmet? Note the following also learned from the chart:

- The yield from small, plain batches is low.
- The yield from large, gourmet batches is low.

Given this, it appears that only the combination of small and gourmet at the same time results in batches with high yield. This conclusion would have been impossible to reach with a chart that allowed only a single variable.

## **Graph Builder**



Figure 3.32 Example of a Graph that was Created with Graph Builder

Using Graph Builder you can interactively create and modify graphs. To create the graphs that have been discussed so far, you launch a platform and specify variables. After the graph is created, you cannot change the variables. If you want to create a different type of graph, you have to launch another platform.

Use Graph Builder to accomplish the following tasks:

- Change variables by dragging and dropping them in and out.
- Create a different type of graph with a few mouse clicks.
- Partition the graph horizontally or vertically.

**Note:** Only some of the Graph Builder features are covered here. For complete details, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.

## Scenario

To use Graph Builder, look at sample data of profit for multiple products. Suppose you are a business analyst and need to better understand the profitability of your product lines. You want to create a line plot that displays Revenue, Product Cost, and Profit, broken out by Product Line.

## **Creating the Graph**

To better understand profitability, create the graph as follows:

- 1 Open the Profit by Product.jmp data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Graph Builder. The Graph Builder workspace appears. See Figure 3.33.

Figure 3.33 Graph Builder Workspace



- 3 Select Quarter in the Select Columns box.
- 4 Click anywhere in the X zone to assign Quarter as the X variable.
- 5 Select Revenue, Product Cost, and Profit in the Select Columns box.
- 6 Click anywhere in the Y zone to assign all three variables as Y variables. See Figure 3.34.





For the variables you are using, JMP chooses side-by-side box plots. Change the box plots to a line plot:

7 Right-click on the plot and select **Box Plot** > **Change To** > **Line**. The chart type changes to a line plot, as shown in Figure 3.35.





Now, create a separate chart for each product:

- 8 Select Product Line in the Select Columns box.
- 9 Click the **Wrap** zone to assign **Product** Line to it. A separate line plot is created for each product, as shown in Figure 3.36.



## Interpreting the Graph

The plots show revenue, cost, and profit, broken down by product line. You can clearly see that some product lines produce more revenue than others.

## **Bubble Plots**

Figure 3.37 Example of a Bubble Plot



A bubble plot is a scatterplot that represents its points as bubbles (or circles). You can change the size and color of the bubbles, and even animate them over time. With the ability to represent up to five

dimensions (x position, y position, size, color, and time), a bubble plot can produce dramatic visualizations and make data exploration easy.

## Scenario

To use a bubble plot, look at population statistics. The statistics are for 116 countries or territories between the years 1950 to 2004. Total population numbers are broken out by age group, and not every country has data for every year. Using a bubble plot, you want to compare the portion of the population that is 19 years or younger to the portion that are 60 years or older. You want to determine how the relationship changes over time.

## **Creating the Bubble Plot**

To answer your question, create the bubble plot:

- 1 Open the PopAgeGroup.jmp data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Bubble Plot.
- 3 Assign Portion60+ to the Y role. This corresponds to the Y variable on the bubble plot.
- 4 Assign Portion 0-19 to the X role. This corresponds to the X variable on the bubble plot.
- 5 Assign Country to the ID role. This tells JMP how to aggregate the rows of the data table into bubbles. Each unique level of the ID variable is represented by a bubble on the plot.
- 6 Assign Year to the Time role. This controls the time indexing when the bubble plot is animated.
- 7 Assign Pop to the Sizes role. This controls the size of the bubbles.
- 8 Assign Region to the Coloring role. This controls the colors of the bubbles. Figure 3.38 shows the completed window.
- 9 Click **OK**. Figure 3.39 shows the initial bubble plot.

Figure 3.38 Bubble Plot Window

💕 Bubble Plot		
Circles plotted to indicate size Select Columns Country Year Pop Pop Age 0-19 Pop Age 0-19 Pop Age 0-19 Portion 0-19 Portion 0-19 Portion80+ F Rate 0-19 F Rate 0-19 F Rate 60+ Pop Age 0-19 F	Cast Selected Columns into Roles Y Portion 0-19 ID Country optional Time Year Sizes Pop Coloring Region By Optional	Action OK Cancel Remove Recall Help

Figure 3.39 Initial Bubble Plot



## Interpreting the Bubble Plot

Because the time variable (in this case, year) starts in 1950, the initial bubble plot shows the data for 1950. You can animate the bubble plot to cycle through all the years. Each successive bubble plot shows the data for that year. The data for each year determines the following:

- The X and Y coordinates
- The bubble's sizes
- The bubble's coloring
- Bubble aggregation

**Note:** For detailed information about how the bubble plot aggregates information across multiple rows, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.

The bubble plot for 1950 shows that if a country's population has a high proportion of people age 19 or younger, then that country generally has a low proportion of age 60 or older.

Click **Go** to animate the bubble plot through the range of years. Note that as time progresses, the Portion 0-19 decreases and the Portion60+ increases.

**Stop** stops the animation.

- Step manually control the animation forward one unit of time.
- **Prev** manually controls the animation back one unit of time.
- Year is used to change the time index manually.
- **Speed** controls the speed of the animation.

**Circle Size** controls the absolute sizes of the bubbles, while maintaining the relative sizes.

## Interacting with the Bubble Plot

You can select a bubble to see the trend for that bubble over time. For example, in the 1950 plot, the large red bubble in the middle is Japan. To see the pattern of Japan through the years:

- 1 Click in the middle of the Japan bubble to select it.
- 2 Click the red triangle and select Trail Bubbles (the Trail Lines option shows the history as a line).
- 3 Click Go.

As the animation progresses through time, the Japan bubble leaves a trail of bubbles so you can see the history. See Figure 3.40.

Figure 3.40 Japan History



Focusing on the Japan bubble, you can easily see that over time, the proportion of the population 19 years old or less decreased, and the proportion of the population 60 years old or more increased.

# Chapter 4

## **Analyzing Your Data**

## Distributions, Relationships, and Models

Analyzing your data helps you make informed decisions. Data analysis often involves these actions:

- Examining distributions
- Assessing relationships
- Hypothesis testing
- Building models

Figure 4.1 Analysis Examples



1	🔍 Weight					
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	🕈 Quan	Quantiles		Moments	
		100.0%	maximum	4285	Mean	2957.6293
		99.5%		4285	Std Dev	535.66353
		97.5%		4026.13	Std Err Mean	49.73511
		90.0%		3691.5	Upper 95% Mean	3056.145
		75.0%	quartile	3343.75	Lower 95% Mean	2859.1136
		50.0%	median	2920	N	116
		25.0%	quartile	2591.25		
	1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500	10.0%		2267		
		2.5%		1895.88		
		0.5%		1695		
		0.0%	minimum	1695		

## Contents

About This Chapter
Prerequisites
The Importance of Graphing Your Data 79
Understanding Modeling Types81
Performing Analyses
Analyzing Distributions
Analyzing Relationships
About Advanced Modeling and Analysis
Modeling
Multivariate Methods
Reliability and Survival

## **About This Chapter**

Statistical and analytical methods are very important to any organization seeking to be data driven. This chapter contains the following information:

- "Prerequisites," p. 79
- "Performing Analyses," p. 84
- "About Advanced Modeling and Analysis," p. 109

## Prerequisites

Before you analyze your data, there are two things that you need to review:

- "The Importance of Graphing Your Data," p. 79
- "Understanding Modeling Types," p. 81

## The Importance of Graphing Your Data

Graphing your data (data visualization) is important to any data analysis, and should always occur before the use of statistical tests or model building. To illustrate why data visualization should be an early step in your data analysis process, consider the following example:

- 1 Open the Anscombe.jmp data table (F. J. Anscombe (1973), *American Statistician*, 27, 17-21). Note the data consists of four pairs of *X* and *Y* variables.
- 2 In the table panel, click on the red triangle next to The Quartet and select Run Script. The script creates a simple linear regression on each pair of variables using Fit Y by X. The Show Points option is turned off, so that none of the data can be seen on the scatterplots. Figure 4.2

shows the model fit and other summary information for each regression.

Prerequisites





Notice that all four models and RSquare values are nearly identical. The fitted model in each case is essentially Y = 3 + 0.5X, and the RSquare value in each case is essentially 0.66. If your data analysis took into account only the above summary information, you would likely conclude that the relationship between X and Y is the same in each case. However, at this point, you have not visualized your data. Your conclusion might be wrong.

To visualize the data, add the points to all four scatterplots:

- 1 Hold down the Ctrl key.
- 2 On one of the four Bivariate Fit outlines, click the red triangle.
- 3 Select Show Points. Figure 4.3 shows the points added to the plots.



Figure 4.3 Scatterplots with Points Added

The scatterplots show that the relationship between X and Y is not the same for the four pairs:

- Plot 1 represents a nice, linear relationship.
- Plot 2 represents a non-linear relationship.
- Plot 3 represents a linear relationship, except for one outlier.
- Plot 4 has all the data at x = 8, except for one point.

This example illustrates that conclusions that are based on statistics alone can be inadequate. A visual exploration of the data should be an early part of any data analysis.

## **Understanding Modeling Types**

Data in JMP can be of different types. JMP refers to this as the modeling type of the data. There are three modeling types in JMP:

Modeling Type	Description	Examples	Specific Example
Continuous	Numeric only. Used	Height	Time to complete a
	in operations like	Temperature	test might be 2 hours,
	sums and means.	Time	or 2.13 hours.
Ordinal	Numeric or character.	Month (1,2,,12)	Month of the year can
	Values belong to	Letter grade (A, B,F)	be 2 (February) or 3
	ordered categories.	Size (small, medium, large)	(March), but not 2.13.

 Table 4.1 Modeling Types

## Table 4.1 Modeling Types

Modeling Type	Description	Examples	Specific Example
Nominal	Numeric or character. Values belong to categories, but the order is not important.	Gender (M or F) Color Test result (pass or fail)	Gender can be M or F, with no order. Gender categories can also be represented by a number (M=1 and F=2).

## **Example of Modeling Type Results**

Different modeling types produce different results in JMP. To see an example of the differences, follow these steps:

- 1 Open the Big Class.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign height and age to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 4.4 shows the results.

Figure 4.4 Distribution Results for height and age



Table 4.2 compares the differences between the results for height and age.

Variable	Modeling Type	Results
height	Continuous	Histogram, Quantiles, and Moments
age	Ordinal	Bar chart and Frequencies

Table 4.2 Results for height and age

## Changing the Modeling Type

If you want to treat a variable differently, you can change the modeling type. For example, in Figure 4.4, the modeling type for age is ordinal. If you want to find the average age instead of frequency counts, change the modeling type to continuous and create the distribution:

- 1 Double-click on the age column heading. The Column Info window appears.
- 2 Change the Modeling Type to **Continuous**. See Figure 4.5.
- 3 Click OK.
- 4 Repeat the steps in the example (see "Example of Modeling Type Results," p. 82) to create the distribution. Figure 4.6 shows the distribution results when **age** is ordinal and continuous.

Figure 4.5 Column Info Window

age		
'age' in Table 'Big Class' Column Name age □ Lock Data Type Numeric ✓ Modeling Type Continuous ✓ Format Fixed Dec ✓ Width 5 Dec 0 Column Properties ✓	OK Cancel Apply Help	Continuous Ordinal Nominal

### Figure 4.6 Different Modeling Types for age



## **Performing Analyses**

Performing statistical analyses normally involves either:

- "Analyzing Distributions," p. 84
- "Analyzing Relationships," p. 91

## **Analyzing Distributions**

Analyzing a single variable usually involves examining the distribution of the variable. You can analyze distributions using the **Distribution** platform.

Note: For complete details of the Distribution platform, see the JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide.

This section examines distributions for the following:

- "Continuous Variables," p. 85
- "Categorical Variables," p. 89

## **Continuous Variables**

Analyzing a continuous variable might include questions such as the following:

- What is the average of the data?
- Is the average statistically different from a target or historical value?
- How spread out are the data? In other words, what is the standard deviation?
- What are the minimum and maximum values?
- Are there any outliers in the data?
- Does the shape of the data match any known distributions?

You can answer these and other questions with graphs, summary statistics, and simple statistical tests. You can analyze a continuous variable to see what you can learn about the data.

### Example of Analyzing a Continuous Variable

Suppose you are an analyst for a railroad company. Your company plans to start transporting cars. You want to analyze the distribution of car weights:

- 1 Open the Car Physical Data.jmp sample data table. The data table contains information about 116 models of cars.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Weight to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 4.7 shows the initial results.

## 86 Analyzing Your Data

## Performing Analyses

### Figure 4.7 Distribution of Weight



The default report window contains three sections:

- A histogram and a box plot to visualize the data.
- A Quantiles outline that shows the percentiles of the distribution.
- A Moments outline that shows the mean, standard deviation, and other statistics.

To rotate the report, click on the red triangle next to Weight, and select Display Options > Horizontal Layout. See Figure 4.8.

## Figure 4.8 Horizontal Layout



## Interpreting the Distribution Results

Using the results presented in Figure 4.8, you can answer some of the questions that were posed earlier:

Question	Histogram	Quantiles	Moments
What is the average car weight?	~3000 lbs		2957 lbs
How spread out are the weights (std dev)?			535 lbs
What are the minimum and maximum weights?	~1500 lbs and ~4500 lbs	1695 lbs and 4285 lbs	
Are there any outliers?	No		

Table 4.3 Questions Answered Using the Report Window Results\*

\*Blank = not applicable

The default report, shown in Figure 4.8, provides a minimal set of graphs and statistics. You can add many more graphs and statistics to the report window. Here are a few examples of actions you can perform:

- "Performing a t-test," p. 87
- "Fitting Distributions," p. 88

## Performing a t-test

A t-test helps you use sample data to draw inferences about the broader population. For example, you can use the sample of 116 car models to draw conclusions about all car models. Suppose you want to test whether the average car weight in the population is equal to a target value. The target value is 3000

#### 88 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

pounds, since the railroad company you work for has determined that an average weight of 3000 pounds is the most efficient.

Perform the t-test as follows:

- 1 Click on the red triangle next to Weight, and select Test Mean. The Test Mean window opens.
- 2 In the Specify Hypothesized Mean box, type 3000. See Figure 4.9.
- 3 Click OK. Figure 4.10 shows the Test Mean results.

Figure 4.9 Test Mean Window



Figure 4.10 Test Mean Results

🕈 🖻 Test Mean=	=value	
Hypothesized Valu	Je 3000	
Actual Estimate	2957.63	
DF	115	
Std Dev	535.664	
1	t Test	
Test Statistic -0	.8519	
Prob >  t  0.3	3960 ———	. 1
Prob≻t 0.8	3020	-p-value
Prob≺t 0.1	1980	
2850 2950	3050 3150	

The primary result of the t-test is the p-value. In this example, the p-value is 0.396. Using a significance level of 0.05, and noting that 0.396 is greater than 0.05, you can conclude that the average weight of car models in the broader population is not significantly different from 3000 lbs.

## **Fitting Distributions**

You can make predictions about a population using a fitted distribution. For this example, you can fit a distribution to estimate the proportion of cars in the broader population that weigh more than a certain amount. Fit a Normal distribution to the Weight variable. Click on the red triangle next to Weight, and select Continuous Fit > Normal. Figure 4.11 shows the fitted Normal curve overlaid on the histogram, and the Fitted Normal outline added to the report.

## Figure 4.11 Normal Fit



Using this information, you can estimate the proportion of cars in the broader population that weigh more than 4000 lbs, the amount your railroad company considers to be heavy.

## **Categorical Variables**

Analyzing a categorical variable might include questions such as the following:

- How many levels does the variable have?
- How many data points does each level have?
- What proportions of the total do each level represent?

Note: Categorical variables have a modeling type of ordinal or nominal.

## Example of Analyzing a Categorical Variable

Suppose you are an analyst for a railroad company. Your company plans to start transporting cars. You want to analyze the distribution of car type and country of origin:

- 1 Open the Car Physical Data.jmp sample data table. The data table contains information about 116 models of cars.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Country and Type to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 4.12 shows the initial results.

#### 90 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

Figure 4.12 Distribution for Country and Type



## Interpreting the Distribution Results

The default report window contains two sections: a bar chart and a Frequencies outline. The bar chart is a graphical representation of the frequency information provided in the Frequencies outline. The Frequencies outline contains the following:

- Levels
- Total counts for each level
- Proportion of the total each level represents

For example, the Count for cars in the Compact level is 22, which accounts for about 19% of the 116 observations.

## Interacting with the Distribution Results

If you select a bar in one chart, the corresponding data in the other chart is highlighted. For example, select the Japan bar in the Country bar chart. In the Type bar chart, you can see that a large number of Japanese cars are sporty. See Figure 4.13.

## Figure 4.13 Japanese Cars



If you select the Other category, you notice that a majority of cars are small or compact, and almost none are large. See Figure 4.14.

## Figure 4.14 Other Cars



## **Analyzing Relationships**

You can analyze the relationship between variables using either the **Fit Y by X** platform or the **Fit Model** platform.

**Note:** The basic platforms and options are covered here. For complete details and explanations of all platform options, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.

Table 4.4 shows the four primary types of relationships.

Chapter 4	4
-----------	---

Table 4.4	Relationship	Types
-----------	--------------	-------

х	Υ	Section
Continuous	Continuous	<ul> <li>"Using Regression with One Predictor," p. 92</li> <li>"Using Regression with Multiple Predictors," p. 102</li> </ul>
Categorical	Continuous	<ul> <li>"Comparing Averages for One Variable," p. 97</li> <li>"Comparing Averages for Multiple Variables," p. 106</li> </ul>
Categorical	Categorical	"Comparing Proportions," p. 100
Continuous	Categorical	This is an advanced topic. See the <i>JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide</i> .

## **Using Regression with One Predictor**

You can use regression to analyze the relationship between two continuous variables. A regression model predicts the average value of one variable (Y) from the value of another variable (X). The X variable is also called a predictor.

### Scenario

To use regression, look at financial data for 32 companies from the pharmaceutical and computer industries. Intuitively, it makes sense that companies that have more employees can generate more sales revenue than companies that have fewer employees. You can use the financial data to accomplish the following tasks:

- "Assess the Relationship," p. 92
- "Fit the Regression Model," p. 94
- "Predict Average Sales," p. 95

### Assess the Relationship

To assess the relationship between the number of employees and the amount of sales revenue, create a scatterplot as follows:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign Sales (\$M) to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign # Employ to the X, Factor role. Figure 4.15 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click **OK**. Figure 4.16 shows the initial results.

## Figure 4.15 Completed Fit Y by X Window

y x	Fit Y by	X - Context	Jal					
Distribution of Y for each X. Modeling types determine analysis.								
	Select Co	lumns ———		- Cast Selecte	d Columns into Roles —	Action		
	Type Size Co Sales (\$ Profits (\$	M) SMD		Y, Response	d Sales (\$M) optional	OK Cancel		
	# Emplo profit/em Assets %profit/s	y ip iales		X, Factor	<b># Employ</b> optional	Remove Recall		
Biv	ariate			Block	optional	Неір		
		¢ţ¢		Weight	optional numeric			
	Bivariate	Oneway		Freq	optional numeric			
Ŀ				Ву	optional			
	Logistic	Contingency			1			
	4	th at						

Figure 4.16 Scatterplot of Sales versus Employees



The scatterplot results show that there is one company with significantly more employees and higher sales than the other companies. The data point representing this company is an outlier. The outlier is stretching out the scale of the plot, making it difficult to examine the relationship. Exclude and hide that data point:

- 1 Click on the data point.
- 2 Select Rows > Exclude/Unexclude. The data point is no longer included in calculations.
- 3 Select Rows > Hide/Unhide. The data point is hidden on all graphs.
- 4 To recreate the scatterplot, click on the red triangle next to **Bivariate Fit**, and select **Script** > **Redo Analysis**. Figure 4.17 shows the updated scatterplot.

#### 94 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

## Figure 4.17 Updated Scatterplot



The updated scatterplot provides a clearer picture of the relationship between sales and the number of employees. As expected, the more employees a company has, the higher sales it can generate.

## Fit the Regression Model

In order to predict the sales revenue from the number of employees, fit a regression model. Click on the red triangle next to **Bivariate Fit** and select **Fit Line**. The regression line is added to the scatterplot and outlines are added to the report. See Figure 4.18.

## Figure 4.18 Regression Line



Within the outlines, look at the following results:

- The p-value of <.0001
- The RSquare value of 0.618

From these results, you can conclude the following:

- Since the p-value is less than a significance level of 0.05, this means that including the number of employees in the prediction model significantly improves the ability to predict average sales.
- Since the correlation coefficient is the square root of the RSquare value, in this example it is 0.786. A correlation coefficient of 0 indicates no relationship between the two variables, and a correlation coefficient of 1 (or -1) indicates a perfect linear relationship.

## **Predict Average Sales**

You can use the regression model to predict the average sales a company might expect if they have a certain number of employees. The prediction equation for the model is as follows:

```
Average sales = 1059.67 + 0.092*employees
```

For example, in a company with 70,000 employees, here is the equation:

7,499.67 = 1059.67 + 0.092\*70,000

Look again at the scatterplot in Figure 4.18. There is an outlier that does not follow the general pattern of the other companies. You can find out if the prediction model changes if you exclude the outlier:

- 1 Click on the data point.
- 2 Select Rows > Exclude/Unexclude.
- 3 Re-fit the model. Click on the red triangle next to Bivariate Fit and select Fit Line.

The results are as follows. See Figure 4.19.

- A new regression line is added to the scatterplot.
- A new Linear Fit outline is added to the report, which includes:
  - A new prediction equation
  - A new RSquare value

Figure 4.19 Model without Outlier



Using the results in Figure 4.19, you can make the following conclusions:

- The outlier was pulling down the regression line for the larger companies, and pulling the line up for the smaller companies.
- The new model fits the data better, since the new correlation (0.94) is closer to 1 than the first correlation coefficient (0.786).

Using the new prediction equation, the predicted average sales for a company with 70,000 employees can be calculated as follows:

8961.36 = 631.36 + 0.119\*70,000

The total for the first model was \$7499.67, so this is an increase of about \$1460.

## **Comparing Averages for One Variable**

If you have a continuous Y variable, and a categorical X variable, you might want to compare averages across levels of the X variable.

## Scenario

To illustrate comparing averages, look at the financial data for 32 companies from the pharmaceutical and computer industries. Suppose you are interested in comparing the profits of computer companies to the profits of pharmaceutical companies. Use the financial data to:

- "Assess the Relationship," p. 97
- "Performing the t-test," p. 99

## Assess the Relationship

To assess the relationship between profits and company type, create a plot:

1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.

**Note:** If you still have the **Companies**.jmp data file open from the previous example, you might have rows that are excluded or hidden. To return the rows to the default state (all rows included and none hidden), select **Rows** > **Clear Row States**.

- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign Profits (\$M) to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign Type to the X, Factor role. Figure 4.20 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click **OK**. Figure 4.21 shows the initial results.

Figure 4.20 Completed Fit Y by X Window



#### 98 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

Figure 4.21 Profits by Company Type



There is an outlier in the Computer Type. The outlier is stretching the scale of the plot and making it difficult to compare the profits. Exclude and hide that data point:

- 1 Click on the data point.
- 2 Select Rows > Exclude/Unexclude. The data point is no longer included in calculations.
- 3 Select Rows > Hide/Unhide. The data point is hidden from all graphs.
- 4 To recreate the plot, click on the red triangle next to **Oneway Analysis**, and select **Script** > **Redo Analysis**. See Figure 4.22.

Figure 4.22 Updated Plot



You can see that removing the outlier gives you a clearer picture of the data. To continue analyzing the relationship, click on the red triangle next to **Oneway Analysis** and select these options:

- Display Options > Mean Lines. This adds mean lines to the plot.
- Means and Std Dev. This displays a report that provides averages and standard deviations.

Figure 4.23 shows the mean lines and the report.
# Figure 4.23 Mean Lines and Report



The updated plot shows that pharmaceutical companies have higher average profits than computer companies. In the report, if you subtract the mean values, the difference is about \$635 million. Looking at the plot, you can also see that some of the computer companies have negative profits, while all of the pharmaceutical companies have positive profits.

# Performing the t-test

Because you have looked at only a sample of companies, you need to ask these questions:

- Does a difference exist in the larger population of all companies, or, is the difference of \$635 million due to chance?
- If there is a difference, what is it?

To answer these questions, perform a two-sample t-test. A t-test lets you use data from a sample to make inferences about the larger population.

To perform the t-test, click on the red triangle next to **Oneway Analysis** and select **t Test**. Figure 4.24 shows the results that have been added to the report.

Figure 4.24 t Test Results



Since the p-value of 0.0004 is less than the significance level of 0.05, you can conclude that the difference you are seeing in average profits for the sample data is not due to chance alone. From this you conclude that the average profits for pharmaceutical companies are higher than the average profits for computer companies in the larger population.

Use the confidence interval limits to determine how much difference exists in the profits of both types of companies. Look at the **Upper CL Dif** and **Lower CL Dif** values shown in Figure 4.24. From these

#### 100 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

values, you can conclude that the average for pharmaceutical companies is between \$324 million and \$944 million higher than the average for computer companies.

# **Comparing Proportions**

If you have categorical *X* and *Y* variables, you can compare the proportions of the *Y* variable levels across the *X* variable levels.

#### Scenario

To illustrate comparing proportions, look at the financial data for 32 companies from the pharmaceutical and computer industries. Suppose you want to find out whether the populations of computer and pharmaceutical companies consist of the same proportions of small, medium, and big companies.

#### Assess the Relationship

To assess the relationship between company size and type, create a mosaic plot:

1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.

**Note**: If you still have the Companies.jmp data file open from the previous example, you might have rows that are excluded or hidden. To return the rows to the default state (all rows included and none hidden), select **Rows > Clear Row States**.

- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign Size Co to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign Type to the X, Factor role. Figure 4.25 shows the completed window.
- 5 Click **OK**. Figure 4.26 shows the initial results.

Figure 4.25 Completed Fit Y by X Window





### Figure 4.26 Company Size by Company Type

The Contingency Table contains information that is not applicable for this example. To remove content, click the red triangle next to **Contingency Table**, and deselect **Total** % and **Col** %. Figure 4.27 shows the updated table.

Figure 4.27 Updated Contingency Table

			Size Co		
	Count	big	medium	small	
	Row %				
	Computer	4	2	14	20
B		20.00	10.00	70.00	
ž	Pharmaceut	5	5	2	12
		41.67	41.67	16.67	
		9	7	16	32

The statistics in the Contingency Table are graphically represented in the Mosaic Plot. For example, the Mosaic Plot shows that the computer industry has a higher percentage of small companies compared to the pharmaceutical industry. The Contingency Table shows the exact statistics: 70% of computer

companies are small, and about 17% of pharmaceutical companies are small. You can use the Mosaic Plot and the Contingency Table to compare the percentages of medium and big companies between the two industries.

# Interpreting the Test

Because you looked at only a sample of companies, you need to ask this question: Do the percentages differ in the broader populations of all computer and pharmaceutical companies, or, are the observed differences due to chance?

To answer this question, you can use the p-value from the Pearson test in the **Tests** outline. Since the p-value of 0.011 is less than the significance level of 0.05, you can conclude that the differences you are seeing in the sample data are not due to chance alone, and that the percentages differ in the broader population.

# Using Regression with Multiple Predictors

The section "Using Regression with One Predictor," p. 92 showed you how to build simple regression models consisting of one predictor variable and one response variable. You can use *multiple regression* to predict the average response variable using two or more predictor variables. You can build and interpret multiple regression models as follows:

- "Scenario," p. 102
- "Assess the Relationship," p. 102
- "Build the Multiple Regression Model," p. 103
- "Actual by Predicted Plot," p. 104
- "Parameter Estimates," p. 105
- "Prediction Profiler," p. 105

# Scenario

To build a multiple regression model, look at sample data containing nutrition information for candy bars. Suppose you want to build a model to predict calories using these variables:

- Total fat
- Carbohydrates
- Protein

# Assess the Relationship

To assess the relationship between calories and total fat, carbohydrates, and protein, create a scatterplot matrix:

- 1 Open the Candy Bars.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Scatterplot Matrix.
- 3 Assign Calories to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Assign Total fat g, Carbohydrate g, and Protein g to the X role.
- 5 Click **OK**. Figure 4.28 shows the results.

#### Figure 4.28 Scatterplot Matrix Results



The scatterplot matrix shows that there is a positive correlation between calories and all three variables. The correlation between calories and total fat is the strongest. Now that you know there is a relationship, you can build a multiple regression model to predict average calories.

### Build the Multiple Regression Model

To build the model, follow these steps:

- 1 Open the Candy Bars.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Model.
- 3 Assign Calories to the Y role.
- 4 Select Total Fat g and click Add. This assigns Total Fat g as a model effect.
- 5 Select Carbohydrate g and click Add.
- 6 Select Protein g and click Add.
- 7 Next to Emphasis, select Effect Screening. Figure 4.29 shows the completed Fit Model window.
- 8 Click the **Run Model** button.

#### IO4 Analyzing Your Data

Performing Analyses

#### Figure 4.29 Fit Model Window

Fit Model			
👻 🔍 Model Specificati	on		
Select Columns	Pick Role Variables	Personality:	Standard Least Squares 🐱
II. Brand II. Name Serving/pkg Oz/pkg Calories Total fat g Saturated fat g Cholesterol g Sodium mg Carbohydrate g Dietary fiber g Sugars o	Y     Calories     optional     Weight     optional numeric     Freq     optional numeric     By     optional      Construct Model Effects     Add     Total fat g	Emphasis: Help Recall Remove	Effect Screening 🗸
Protein g Vitamin A %RDI Vitamin C %RDI Calcium %RDI Iron %RDI	Cross Protein g Nest Macros Degree 2 Attributes • Transform • No Intercept		

The report window shows the model results. To interpret the model results, focus on these areas:

- "Actual by Predicted Plot," p. 104
- "Parameter Estimates," p. 105
- "Prediction Profiler," p. 105

Note: For complete details about all of the model results, see JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide.

#### Actual by Predicted Plot

The Actual by Predicted Plot shows the actual calories versus the predicted calories. As the predicted values become closer to the actual values, the points on the scatterplot fall closer around the red line. See Figure 4.30. You can see that the model is predicting well.

Another measure of model accuracy is the RSq value (shown below the plot in Figure 4.30). The RSq value measures the percentage of variability in calories, as explained by the model. A value closer to 1 means a model is predicting well. In this example, the RSq value is 0.99.

#### Figure 4.30 Actual by Predicted Plot



# Parameter Estimates

The Parameter Estimates outline shows the following information:

- The model coefficients
- P-values for each parameter

# Figure 4.31 Parameter Estimates Outline

Mode	el coefficie	ents	P	values	
▼ Parameter E	stimates				
Term	Estimate	Std Error	t Ratio	Prob> t	$\backslash$
Intercept	-5.964301	2.899986	-2.06	0.0434*	
Total fat g	8.9899516	0.144981	62.01	<.0001*	
Carbohydrate g	4.097505	0.071025	57.69	<.0001*	
Protein g	4.4013313/	0.39785	11.06	<.0001*	Ζ
	$\sim$			$\sim$ $\sim$	·

In this example, the p-values are all very small (<.0001). This indicates that all three effects (fat, carbohydrate, and protein) contribute significantly when predicting calories.

You can use the model coefficients to predict the value of calories for particular values of fat, carbohydrate, and protein. Suppose you want to predict the average calories for any candy bar that has these characteristics:

- Fat = 11 g
- Carbohydrate = 43 g
- Protein = 2 g

Using these values, you can calculate the predicted average calories as follows:

```
277.92 = -5.9643 + 8.99^{*}11 + 4.0975^{*}43 + 4.4013^{*}2
```

The characteristics in this example are the same as the Milky Way candy bar (on row 59 of the data table). The actual calories for the Milky Way are 280, showing that the model predicts well.

# **Prediction Profiler**

You can use the Prediction Profiler to assess how changes in the factors impact the predicted values. The profile lines show the magnitude of change in calories as the factor changes. The line for Total fat g is the steepest, meaning that changes in total fat have the largest impact on calories. See Figure 4.32.

#### 106 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

Figure 4.32 Prediction Profiler



Click and drag the vertical line for each factor to see how the predicted value changes. Additionally, you can click the current factor values and change them. For example, click on the factor values and type the values for the Milky Way candy bar. See Figure 4.33.

Figure 4.33 Factor Values for the Milky Way



Note: For complete details about the Prediction Profiler, see the JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide.

# **Comparing Averages for Multiple Variables**

The section "Comparing Averages for One Variable," p. 97, compared averages across the levels of a categorical variable. To compare averages across levels of two or more variables at once, use the *Analysis of Variance* technique (or ANOVA).

#### Scenario

To compare data across multiple variables, look at sample financial data within 32 pharmaceutical and computer companies. Suppose you want to compare company profits by these two variables:

- Type (pharmaceutical or computer)
- Size (small, medium, big)

# Assess the Relationship

To visualize the differences in profit for all combinations of type and size, create a graph:

1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.

- 2 Select Graph > Graph Builder. The Graph Builder window appears.
- 3 Assign Profits (\$M) to the Y zone.
- 4 Assign Size Co to the X zone.
- 5 Assign Type to the Group X zone. Figure 4.34 shows the completed graph.

Figure 4.34 Graph of Company Profits



You can see that one big computer company has very large profits. That outlier is stretching the scale of the graph, making it difficult to compare the other data points. Click on the outlier to select it, and then select **Rows** > **Exclude/Unexclude**. The point is removed, and the scale of the graph automatically updates. Figure 4.35 shows the updated graph.

Figure 4.35 Graph with Outlier Removed



#### 108 Analyzing Your Data Performing Analyses

You can see that pharmaceutical companies have higher average profits. You can also see that for the pharmaceutical companies only, there appears to be a difference in the profits between company sizes. When the effect of one variable (company size) changes for different levels of another variable (company type), this is called an *interaction*.

Since this data is only a sample, you need to find out if the differences are limited to this sample (due to chance), or if the same patterns exist in the larger population of companies. To help you make this determination, perform the statistical tests using the **Fit Model** platform:

- 1 Select Analyze > Fit Model.
- 2 Assign Profits (\$M) to the Y role.
- 3 Select both Type and Size Co.
- 4 Click the Macros arrow and select Full Factorial.
- 5 Next to Emphasis, select Effect Screening. Figure 4.29 shows the completed Fit Model window.
- 6 Click Run Model. The report window shows the model results.

Figure 4.36 Completed Fit Model Window

Model Specification	
Model Specification   Select Columns Pick Role Variables   Type Pick Role Variables   Size Co   Sales (\$M)   Profits (\$M)   # Employ   profit/emp   Assets   % profit/sales   Weight   optional   numeric   R   By   optional   Employ   Preq   Optional   Size Co   Construct Model Effects   Add   Type   Size Co   Nest   Macros   Degree   Oble Informered	rsonality: Standard Least Squares   nphasis: Effect Screening  Help Run Model Recall Iemove

To decide whether the differences are real, or due to chance, examine the Effect Tests outline.

#### Note: For complete details about all of the Fit Model results, see the JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide.

#### Effect Tests

The Effect Tests outline (see Figure 4.37) shows the results of the statistical tests. There is a test for each of the effects included in the model on the Fit Model window (Type, Size Co, and Type\*Size Co).

#### Figure 4.37 Effect Tests Outline

▼ Effect Tests							
			Sum of				
Source	Nparm	DF	Squares	F Ratio	Prob > F		
Туре	1	1	1401847.4	10.1368	0.0039*		
Size Co	2	2	724616.2	2.6198	0.0927		
Type*Size Co	2	2	448061.5	1.6200	0.2180		

First look at the test for the interaction, the Type\*Size Co effect. The p-value of 0.218 is large (greater than the significance level of 0.05). You previously observed that the pharmaceutical companies appeared to have different profits between company sizes. However, using this data, the effect test indicates that there is no interaction between type and size as it relates to profit. You can conclude that the differences do not apply to the broader population. Therefore, remove that effect from the model, and re-run the model, as follows:

- 1 Return to the Fit Model window.
- 2 In the Construct Model Effects box, select the **Type\*Size Co** effect and click **Remove**.
- 3 Click Run Model. Figure 4.38 shows the new Effect Tests outline.

Figure 4.38 Effect Tests Outline

Fffect Tests									
			Sum of						
Source	Nparm	DF	Squares	F Ratio	Prob > F				
Туре	1	1	1356297.9	9.3768	0.0049*				
Size Co	2	2	434161.3	1.5008	0.2410				

The p-value for the Size Co effect is large, indicating that there are no differences between different sized companies in the broader population of all companies. The p-value for the Type effect is small, indicating that the differences you saw in the data between computer and pharmaceutical companies is not due to chance. You can conclude that there is a real difference between computer and pharmaceutical companies in the broader population.

# **About Advanced Modeling and Analysis**

You can perform advanced statistical modeling and analysis using JMP platforms in these categories:

- "Modeling," p. 109
- "Multivariate Methods," p. 110
- "Reliability and Survival," p. 111

Note: You can access these platforms from the Analyze menu.

# Modeling

Platforms that provide advanced modeling techniques include the following:

About Advanced Modeling and Analysis

- **Screening** Use the **Screening** platform to analyze screening designs when you want to sift through a large number of factors.
- Nonlinear Use the Nonlinear platform to fit models that are nonlinear in the parameters.
- **Neural Net** Use the **Neural Net** platform to fit a simple, one-layer neural net. A neural net model is efficient and flexible in modeling a wide variety of response surfaces.
- **Gaussian Process** Use the **Gaussian Process** platform if you want a flexible response surface that responds to local features. You can also fit no-error models, which are common in areas like computer simulations, where a given input always results in the same output.
- Partition Use the Partition platform to fit classification and regression trees.
- **Time Series** Use the **Time Series** platform to analyze time-correlated data and to fit ARIMA and smoothing models.
- **Categorical** Use the **Categorical** platform to tabulate categorical response data and to calculate test statistics. You can use this platform to analyze surveys and other categorical response data.
- **Choice** Use the **Choice** platform to model complex choices, such as those used in consumer research experiments. You can use this platform for market research and product design.

# **Multivariate Methods**

Platforms that explore relationships among multiple variables include the following:

**Multivariate** Use the **Multivariate** platform to investigate relationships among correlated response variables using these methods (to name a few):

- Scatterplot matrices
- Principal components
- Multivariate outlier plots

**Cluster** Use the **Cluster** platform to cluster observations using these methods:

- Hierarchical
- K-means
- EM (expectation maximization)
- **Principal Components** Use the **Principal Components** platform to derive linear combinations of variables that explain the variability in the data.
- **Discriminant** Use the **Discriminant** platform to derive linear combinations that you can use to predict group membership.
- **PLS** Use the **PLS** platform to fit models using partial least squares. Use **PLS** when there are more x-variables than observations.
- **Item Analysis** Use the **Item Analysis** platform to fit response curves from Item Response Theory, allowing you to analyze surveys or test data.

# **Reliability and Survival**

Platforms that analyze and fit models to survival, reliability, and other time-to-event data include the following:

- **Life Distribution** Use the Life Distribution platform to analyze and fit distributions to time-to-event data.
- Fit Life by X Use the Fit Life by X platform to analyze data from accelerated life testing.
- **Recurrence** Use the **Recurrence** platform to analyze time-to-event data where an event can occur more than once per unit. You can use this platform when a unit breaks down, is repaired, and is put back into service.
- **Survival** Use the **Survival** platform to analyze survival data using product-limit (Kaplan Meier) computations.
- **Fit Parametric Survival** Use the **Fit Parametric Survival** platform to fit parametric censored data. This platform is a personality of the **Fit Model** platform.
- **Fit Proportional Hazards** Use the **Fit Proportional Hazards** platform to fit proportional hazard regression models using a Cox model. This platform is a personality of the **Fit Model** platform.

# Chapter 5

# **Customizing JMP**

# Saving Results, Table Variables, Scripts, and Preferences

Some of the ways you can customize JMP include the following actions:

- Saving platform results as journals or projects
- · Creating table variables to use in formulas or as notes
- Creating scripts to reproduce analyses or graphs
- Changing preferences

Figure 5.1 Customization Examples



# Contents

Saving Platform Results
Journals
Projects
Working with Table Variables
Example: Viewing and Editing Table Variables
Creating Table Variables
Working with Scripts
Example: Creating and Running a Script 12
Changing Preferences
Example: Changing Preferences12

# **Saving Platform Results**

You can save platform results using journals or projects. You can share these results and recreate them at any time. For full details about journals and projects, see the *JMP User Guide*.

# Journals

You can save platform reports for future viewing by creating a journal of the report window. The journal is a copy of the report window. You can edit or append other reports to a journal. The journal is not connected to the data table.

# **Example: Creating a Journal**

As an example of creating a journal, perform the following steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign both Type and Size Co to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click OK.
- 5 On the Type outline, click on the red triangle menu and select Histogram Options > Show Counts.
- 6 On the Size Co outline, click on the red triangle menu and select Mosaic Plot.
- 7 To journal these results, select Edit > Journal. The results are duplicated in a journal window.

Figure 5.2 Journal of Distribution Results



# II6 Customizing JMP

Saving Platform Results

The results in the journal are not connected to the data table. For example, if you click the Computer bar on the Type bar chart, no rows are selected in the data table.

# **Adding Additional Analyses**

If you perform a different analysis, you can add the results to an existing journal. For example, perform these steps:

- 1 With a journal open, select Analyze > Distribution.
- 2 Assign profit/emp to the Y, Columns role.
- 3 Click OK.
- 4 Select Edit > Journal. The results are appended to the bottom of the journal.

# **Projects**

You can save multiple JMP file types (such as data tables, reports, journals, and scripts) into a single file by creating a project. The project file contains all the information needed to re-open all of the included files.

# **Example: Creating a Project**

To create a project, perform these steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Profits (\$M) and profit/emp to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click OK.
- 5 To start a new project, select File > New > Project. The Project window appears on the left side of the JMP window. See Figure 5.3.

#### Figure 5.3 Initial Project Window



- 6 Type a name for the project.
- 7 To add the Distribution results to the project, right-click on the project name and select Add Window.
- 8 On the Select a Window window, select the Distribution results. See Figure 5.4.

Figure 5.4 Select the Distribution Results

Select a Window	
Companies	OK Cancel
<	

9 Click **OK**. The Distribution results are added to the project. See Figure 5.5.

#### II8 Customizing JMP

Working with Table Variables

Figure 5.5 Distribution Results Added to the Project

	File	Edit	Tables	Rows	Cols	DOE	Analyze	Graph	Tools	View	Window	Help
		Ð	🞽 🛃		1 %	De C		? 🕂	⊛ ∜	) 🥑	ρQ	+ 🗉
	F	у <sub>х</sub>	¥ >	<b>H</b> 5	. 🕸	≫ ∰	+ ++ =			ሐ ጓ		🕈 😒
Distribution results	Project	ts		•	×	Co						
added to the project		🌶 Fi	nance									
added to the project_			🖣 Compa	anies- Di	stribu	To Cot	mpanies			• <u> </u>	_ •	
						Notes	: Selecte	d Data i	on thill	-		Tv
							F	Compa	nies- I	Distrib	ution o	f Profit
							•	Dist	ributi	ons		
								Pr	ofits (	(\$M)		
								400	10-6		1	1
												-
								300	IO			

- 10 To add the Companies.jmp data table to the project, repeat step 7 and select the Companies data table from the window.
- 11 Click OK. The data table is added to the project. See Figure 5.6.
- Figure 5.6 Companies Data Table Added to the Project



You can double-click on the links in the project to open the data table and recreate the Distribution results.

# **Working with Table Variables**

You can use table variables as text to attach notes to a data table. You can also use table variables as numbers in column formulas.

# **Example: Viewing and Editing Table Variables**

To see an example of a table variable, open the Companies.jmp sample data table. A table variable called **Notes** appears in the table panel. See Figure 5.7.

### Figure 5.7 Table Variable

TT1111	🛗 Companies									
lable variable	Companies Notes Selected Data on this		Туре	Size Co						
		1	Computer	small						
		2	Pharmaceut	big						
		3	Computer	small						
		4	Pharmaceut	big						
		5	Computer	small						
		6	Pharmaceut	bia						

To view or edit the contents of the table variable, double-click on the contents portion. See Figure 5.8. If you double-click on the table variable name (in this example, Notes), you can edit the name or contents of the table variable. See Figure 5.9.

Figure 5.8 View the Contents of a Table Variable



Figure 5.9 Table Variable Window

🕴 Table	· Variable for Companies	×
Name	Notes	]
Value	Selected Data on the Fortune500 from April 23, 1990 edition of Fortune magazine. Subset of FINANCIAL data table. Use to compare profitability of two company types. Size company is computed-see column formula. See Table Info of FINANCIAL data table.	
	OK Cancel	

# **Creating Table Variables**

To create a table variable, perform these steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Click on the red triangle menu next to Companies and select New Table Variable. See Figure 5.10.

#### 120 **Customizing JMP** Working with Scripts

Figure 5.10 Create a New Table Variable



- 3 Type a name for the table variable in the **Name** box.
- 4 Type the contents of the variable in the Value box. See Figure 5.11.

Figure 5.11 Table Variable Window

🖣 Ta	able	Variable for Companies	
Na	ame	Analysis	
Va	ilue	This data table can be used with many platforms to demonstrate a wide variety of analyses.	
		OK Cancel	

5 Click **OK**. The table variable is added to the table panel. See Figure 5.12. Figure 5.12 Table Variable is Added

	🔚 Companies		
	♥ Companies	• •	
	Notes Selected Data on the	•	Туре
	Analysis This data table ca	1	Computer
N		2	Pharmaceut
New table variable		3	Computer
		4	Pharmaceut

# **Working with Scripts**

While a platform report window is open, you can create scripts to reproduce your analyses or graphs. The scripts are saved to the data table, and you can run them at any time.

# **Example: Creating and Running a Script**

To create and run a script, perform these steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Type and profits/emp to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click OK.
- 5 Click on the red triangle menu next to Type and select the following:
  - Histogram Options > Show Counts
  - Confidence Interval > 0.95
- 6 Click on the red triangle menu next to profit/emp and select the following:
  - Outlier Box Plot, to remove the outlier box plot
  - CDF Plot
- 7 Click on the red triangle menu next to Distribution and select Stack.
- 8 To save this analysis as a script, click on the red triangle menu next to Distributions and select **Script > Save Script to Data Table.** See Figure 5.13. The script appears in the table panel. See Figure 5.14.

Figure 5.13 Save Script to Data Table



Figure 5.14 Distribution Script



# I22 Customizing JMP

**Changing Preferences** 

10 To recreate the analysis, click on the red triangle menu next to the script (Distribution) and select **Run Script**. See Figure 5.15.

Figure 5.15 Running the Distribution Script



# Scripts and JSL

The scripts you created in this section contain JMP Scripting Language (JSL) commands. You can develop JSL scripts independently of platforms and data tables. For complete details about JSL, see the *JMP Scripting Guide*.

# **Changing Preferences**

You can change preferences in JMP using the Preferences window. To open the Preferences window (see Figure 5.16), select **File > Preferences**.





On the left side of the Preferences window is a list of categories. On the right side of the window are all of the preferences that you can change for the selected category.

# **Example: Changing Preferences**

Every platform report window has options that you can turn on or off. However, your changes to these options are not remembered the next time you use the platform. If you want JMP to remember your changes every time you use the platform, change those options in the preferences window. For example, perform these steps:

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Distribution.
- 3 Assign Profits (\$M) to the Y, Columns role.
- 4 Click **OK**. Figure 5.17 shows the report window.

#### I24 Customizing JMP

**Changing Preferences** 

Figure 5.17 Distribution Report Window



Notice that the histogram is vertical, and the report window includes an outlier box plot. If you want to change the histogram to horizontal, and remove the outlier box, you can select the appropriate options on the Profits (\$M) red triangle menu. However, if you want those preferences to always be in effect when you use the platform, then change them in the Preferences window:

- 1 Select File > Preferences.
- 2 Select the **Platforms** category in the left panel.
- 3 Select **Distribution** from the Platforms list.
- 4 Select the Horizontal Layout option.
- 5 Deselect the Outlier Box Plot option. Figure 5.18 shows the Preferences window.
- 6 Click OK.

₿.	Preferences			×		
	^	Platforms	Options			
	+	Attribute Chart	Uniform Scaling Normal Quantile Plot	🗖 Exp 🗖		
	General	Bivariate Curve	Stack Outlier Box Plot (default on)	🔲 Gar		
	D)	Bivariate Conve Bivariate Nonpar Density Bubble Plot	Quantiles [default on]     Quantile Box Plot	🔲 Bet:		
	Reports	Capability	Moments [default on]	🔲 Sm		
		Categorical Cell Plot	More Moments CDF Plot	🔲 Joh		
	Tables	Chart	🗹 Horizontal Layout 🔲 Test Mean 🛛	Joh		
	<b>B</b> i	Choice Contingency	Histogram [default on]     Test Std Dev	0 🗌 Joh		
	Platforms	Contour Plot	Shadowgram Confidence Interval 0.90	V 🗌 GLC		
		Control Chart	Vertical [default on]  Prediction Interval	🗆 Ali		
	Text Data Files	Custom Profiler CUSUM	Std Error Bars Dolerance Interval	🗖 Poi:		
		Discriminant	Set Bin Width 0 Capability Analysis	🔲 Gar		
	Windows Specific	Distribution DOE	Count Axis Normal	🔲 Bini		
		Fit Distribution	Prob Axis LogNormal	🔲 Bet:		
	Fonts	Fit Least Squares	Density Axis Weibull	🗌 Ppk		
	_	Fit Life by X	Show Percents	🗹 Frei		
	樿 Communications 💌	Fit Manova	Show Counts Extreme Value	🔲 Ser		
		Reset Platform to Defaults	<	>		
OK Cancel Apply Reset to Defaults Hep						

Figure 5.18 Distribution Preferences

If you repeat the Distribution analysis, you can see that the histogram is now horizontal and the outlier box plot does not appear. These preferences remain the same until you change them.

For details about all of the preferences, see the JMP User Guide.

# Chapter 6

# **Special Features**

# Automatic Updating, Using Flash, and Integrating with SAS

Using some of the special features in JMP, you can do the following actions:

- Update analyses or graphs automatically
- Create files to show results outside of JMP using the Adobe Flash Player
- Integrate with SAS to access advanced analytical features

Figure 6.1 Examples of Special Features



# Contents

Automatically Updating Analyses and Graphics
Example: Using Automatic Recalc129
Creating Flash Versions of the Profiler and Bubble Plot
Integrating JMP and SAS134

# Automatically Updating Analyses and Graphics

When you make a change to a data table, you can use the Automatic Recalc feature to automatically update analyses and graphs that are associated with the data table. For example, if you exclude, unexclude, or delete values in the data table, that change is instantly reflected in the associated analyses or graphs. Note the following information:

- Some platforms do not support Automatic Recalc. For more information, see the *JMP Statistics and Graphics Guide*.
- For the supported platforms in the **Analyze** menu, Automatic Recalc is turned off by default.
- For the supported platforms in the **Graph** menu, Automatic Recalc is turned on by default (except for Variability/Gauge Chart, Capability, and Control Chart).

# **Example: Using Automatic Recalc**

To use Automatic Recalc, look at financial data for 32 companies from the pharmaceutical and computer industries.

- 1 Open the Companies.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Y by X.
- 3 Assign Sales (\$M) to the Y, Response role.
- 4 Assign # Employ to the X, Factor role.
- 5 Click **OK**. See Figure 6.2.

Figure 6.2 Initial Scatterplot



You can see from the initial scatterplot that one company has significantly more employees and sales than the other companies. You decide that this company is an outlier, and you want to exclude that point. Before you exclude the point, turn on Automatic Recalc so that your scatterplot is updated automatically when you make the change.

- 6 Turn on Automatic Recalc by clicking on the red triangle menu and selecting **Script** > **Automatic Recalc**.
- 7 Click on the outlier to select it.
- 8 Select **Rows** > **Exclude/Unexclude**. The point is excluded from the analysis and the scatterplot automatically updates. See Figure 6.3.

#### 130 Special Features

Automatically Updating Analyses and Graphics

Figure 6.3 Updated Scatterplot



If you fit a regression line to the data, the point in the lower right corner has a significant influence on the slope of the line. If you then exclude that point with Automatic Recalc turned on, you see the slope of the line change.

9 Fit a regression line by clicking on the red triangle menu and selecting **Fit Line**. Figure 6.4 shows the regression line and analysis results added to the report window.





- 10 Click on the point to select it.
- 11 Select **Rows** > **Exclude/Unexclude**. The regression line and analysis results are automatically updated, reflecting the exclusion of the point. See Figure 6.5.

#### 132 Special Features

Creating Flash Versions of the Profiler and Bubble Plot



Figure 6.5 Updated Regression Line and Analysis Results

When you exclude a point, it does not hide it in the scatterplot; it simply does not include it in the analysis. You can also hide the point in the scatterplot by clicking on the point and selecting **Rows** > **Hide/Unhide**.

# **Creating Flash Versions of the Profiler and Bubble Plot**

If you want to show the interactive results of a profiler or bubble plot outside of JMP, you can export a .SWF file that can be viewed using the Adobe Flash Player. The .SWF file can be imported into presentations and web applications. You can also save the results as an HTML page with the .SWF output embedded.

To demonstrate creating a Flash version of the Bubble Plot, do the following steps:

- 1 Open the PopAgeGroup.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Graph > Bubble Plot.
- 3 Assign Portion60+ to the Y role.

- 4 Assign Portion 0-19 to the X role.
- 5 Assign Country to the ID role.
- 6 Assign Year to the Time role.
- 7 Assign Pop to the Sizes role.
- 8 Assign Region to the Coloring role.
- 9 Click **OK**. See Figure 6.6.

Figure 6.6 Initial Bubble Plot



- 10 Click on the red triangle menu and select Save As Flash (SWF).
- 11 In the Save As SWF window, select the location to which you want to save the file.
- 12 Click **Save**. The Flash version of the Bubble Plot is saved as HTML and appears in a web browser. See Figure 6.7.

#### I34Special Features

Integrating JMP and SAS





For additional information about the Flash versions of the Profiler and Bubble Plot platforms, or for instructions on importing the Flash versions into Microsoft PowerPoint 2007, see the following link:

www.jmp.com/support/swfhelp/en/

# **Integrating JMP and SAS**

Using JMP, you can interact with SAS as follows:

- You can write or create SAS code in JMP.
- You can submit SAS code and view the results in JMP.
- You can connect to a SAS Metadata Server or a SAS Server on a remote machine.
- You can connect to SAS on your local machine.
- You can open and browse SAS data sets.
- You can retrieve and view data sets generated by SAS.

Note: For complete details about integrating JMP and SAS, see the JMP User Guide.

As an example of integrating JMP and SAS, perform the steps in the following sections:

- "Create SAS Code," p. 135
- "Submit SAS Code," p. 135
### Create SAS Code

To create SAS code in JMP, look at nutrition data for candy bars.

- 1 Open the Candy Bars.jmp sample data table.
- 2 Select Analyze > Fit Model.
- 3 Assign Calories to the Y role.
- 4 Assign Total fat g, Carbohydrates g, and Protein g as model effects.
- 5 To generate the SAS code that lets you run the same model in SAS, click on the red triangle menu and select **Create SAS Job**. Figure 6.8 shows the SAS code (not all of the data is shown here.)

Figure 6.8 SAS Code

×.	Cand	y Ba	rsMo	del		×
	DATA INPU' 310 230 220 240 210 230 ; RUN;	Ca: 7 20 12 12 14 13 3	ndy_I Calor 28 27 24 22 25 47	Bars; cies 4 3 7 2 3	Total_fat_g Carbohydrate_g Protein_g; Lines;	•
	PROC MODEI RUN ;	GLI	M DA Calor	ATA=C	andy_Bars; = Total_fat_g Carbohydrate_g Protein_g;	~

#### Submit SAS Code

To submit code (see Figure 6.8) to SAS from within JMP, take the following steps:

- 1 Perform steps 1 through 4 in the section "Create SAS Code," p. 135. Step 5 is optional.
- 2 In the Fit Model window, click on the red triangle menu and select Submit to SAS.
- 3 In the **Connect to SAS Server** window (see Figure 6.9), choose a method to connect to SAS (if you are not already connected). For this example, select **Connect to SAS on this machine**.

Figure 6.9 Connect to SAS Server

🕴 Coni	nect to SAS Server 🛛 🔀
0 0	Connect to metadata-defined SAS server: Metadata Server Profiles Connect to remote SAS server on: Machine: Port:
۲	Connect to SAS on this machine
	OK Cancel

JMP connects to SAS. SAS runs the model and sends the results back to JMP. The results can appear as SAS output, HTML, RTF, PDF, or JMP report format (you can choose the format using JMP Preferences). Figure 6.10 shows the results formatted as a JMP report. See the *JMP User Guide* for details.

Figure 6.10 SAS Results Formatted as a JMP Report

Report: SAS Re	esults					
The SAS System						
The GLM Procedure						
Number of C	bservati	ons				
Number of Obs	ervations R	ead	75			
Number of Obs	ervations U	sed	75			
Dependent Variable	: Calories					
Overall ANO	VA					
		Sum of				
Source	DF	Squares	Mean Squa	re	F Value	Pr > F
Model	3	282358	94119	9.3	3237.58	7.7e-76
Error	71	2064.03	29.07	09		
Corrected Total	74	284422				
Fit Statistics						
		с	alories			
R-Square Coe	ff Var Ro	ot MSE	Mean			
0.99274 2.3	21858 5	.39174 2	43.027			
▼ Type I Mode	I ANOVA					
Source	DF	Type I SS	Mean Squ	are	F Value	Pr > F
Total_fat_g	1	185260	185	260	6372.68	3e-71
Carbohydrate_g	1	93540.4	9354	40.4	3217.67	7e-61
Protein_g	1	3557.86	3551	7.86	122.386	4.2e-17
Type III Mod	el ANOV/	۹				
Source	DF	Type III SS	5 Mean Sq	uar∉	e F Value	e Pr>
Total_fat_g	1	111777	7 11	1777	3844.97	1.4e-6
Carbohydrate_g	1	96756.1	967	56.1	3328.28	2.2e-6
Protein_g	1	3557.86	5 355	57.86	5 122.386	6 4.2e-1
<ul> <li>Solution</li> </ul>						
		Standard	1			
Parameter	Estimate	Erro	r t Value	P	Yr> t	
Intercept	-5.9643	2.89999	-2.0567	0.0	4339	
Total fat d					4 - 00	
	8.98995	0.14498	62.0078	1.	40-03	
Carbohydrate_g	8.98995	0.14498	62.0078 57.6913	1.	4e-63 2e-61	



# **Navigating JMP**

Menus and Shortcuts

This appendix describes the platforms on the **Analyze**, **Graph**, and **Tables** menus, and describes common keyboard shortcuts and mouse actions.

Note: The other menus are described in the JMP Design of Experiments Guide and the JMP User Guide.

# Contents

The Analyze Menu
The Graph Menu142
The Tables Menu
Keyboard Shortcuts and Mouse Actions147
Files147
Data Tables
Windows149
Mouse Actions

## The Analyze Menu

The following table describes all of the platforms in the **Analyze** menu.

Platform	Description	Menu	
Distribution	Provides a histogram for continuous data and a bar chart for nominal or ordinal data, along with relevant summary statistics. Presents options for many one-sample analyses, based on modeling type.	Analyze     Graph     Tools     View       ➡     Distribution       ☑x     Fit Y by X       ☑     Matched Pairs       ➢     Fit Model       Modeling     ▶	
Fit Y by X	Shows plots that describe the relationship between any two variables. Provides analyzes based on the modeling types of the two variables, such as bivariate, one-way, logistic, and contingency analysis.	Multivariate Methods   Reliability and Survival	
Matched Pairs	Analyzes two continuous variables that are measurements on the same experimental unit or subject.		
Fit Model	Fits models involving one or more Y variables and multiple X variables. Techniques include standard least squares, stepwise, MANOVA, loglinear variance, logistic, proportional hazards, parametric survival, and generalized linear models.		

Table A.1 Platform Descriptions in the Analyze Menu

Platform	Description	Menu
Modeling	<ul> <li>Screening helps in the analysis of two-level designs by showing which effects are large.</li> <li>Nonlinear fits models that are nonlinear in their parameters.</li> <li>Neural Net fits a simple one-layer neural net model.</li> <li>Gaussian Process fits no-error-term models that can perfectly interpolate the data.</li> <li>Partition recursively partitions the data to fit a decision tree.</li> <li>Time Series lets you explore and forecast univariate time-series data.</li> <li>Categorical tabulates and summarizes categorical response data.</li> <li>Choice lets you analyze and model complex choices, such as those used in consumer research experiments.</li> </ul>	Image: Screening         Nolinear         Neural Net         Image: Screening         Image: Partition         Image: Partition         Image: Categorical         Image: Choice
Multivariate Methods	<ul> <li>Multivariate explores how multiple variables relate to each other.</li> <li>Cluster lets you cluster (or group) the rows of a data table according to their similarities across multiple variables.</li> <li>Principal Components derives linear combination of variables that capture as much of the variability in the original variables as possible.</li> <li>Discriminant derives linear combinations that predict group membership.</li> <li>PLS fits models using partial least squares. This is useful when there are more x-variables than observations.</li> <li>Item Analysis fits response curves from Item Response Theory, enabling you to analyze surveys or test data.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li></li></ul>

Table A.1 Pla	atform Descrip	tions in the A	Analyze Menu
---------------	----------------	----------------	--------------

Platform	Description	Menu
Reliability and Survival	<ul> <li>Life Distribution analyzes and fits distributions to time-to-event data.</li> <li>Fit Life by X analyzes data from accelerated life testing.</li> <li>Recurrence Analysis analyzes time-to-event data where an event can occur more than once per unit. You can use this platform when a unit breaks down, is repaired, and is put back into service</li> <li>Survival analyzes survival data using product-limit (Kaplan Meier) computations.</li> <li>Fit Parametric Survival fits models to parametric censored data.</li> <li>Fit Proportional Hazards fits proportional hazard regression models using a Cox model.</li> </ul>	└ Life Distribution

 Table A.1
 Platform Descriptions in the Analyze Menu

### The Graph Menu



The following table describes all of the platforms in the Graph menu.

Platform	Description	Example
Graph Builder	Uses an interactive interface to create flexible graphs that are useful for visualizing multivariate data.	Credt Depost Fee Based Other Revolving Third Party
Chart	Plots bar, line, pie, needle, and point charts of user-specified summary statistics for multiple Y variables across the values of up to two X variables.	
Overlay Plot	Plots one or more numeric Y variables across the values of a single X variable. Constructs several plots in one window using grouping variables.	Manage

Table A.2 Platform Descriptions in the Graph Menu

Platform	Description	Example
Scatterplot 3D	Produces three-dimensional rotatable plots for multiple Y variables. Also displays normal contour ellipsoids, nonparametric density contours, and biplot rays.	
Contour Plot	Constructs contour plots for one or more numeric response variables, Y, across a grid defined by two numeric X variables.	
Bubble Plot	Displays a scatterplot with points represented as bubbles. The bubbles can be grouped, sized, colored, and animated across time.	1998 Reputer total
Parallel Plot	Draws a coordinate plot that shows connected line segments representing each row of the data table.	
Cell Plot	Produces a rectangular array of cells drawn with a one-to-one correspondence to data table values, and colored by the values in the cells.	
Tree Map	Displays tree maps, which can be thought of as bar charts that have been folded over in two dimensions.	ALBANY C CTY         CLUMENT C CTY         ADDATO IN         DODATO INFORMATION         DODATO CONTRACT         DODATOC         DOTATOC         DOTATOC <thdotatoc< th="">         &lt;</thdotatoc<>
Scatterplot Matrix	Displays scatterplots for all pairs of variables, or for a selection of Y variables plotted against one or more X variables.	1-Octanol Ether Chloroform

The	Graph	Menu
-----	-------	------

Platform	Description	Example
Ternary Plot	Displays the compositional makeup of mixture data on a two-dimensional plot.	Yee 01 0.8 02 0.7 0.4 0.4 0.5 2 0.5 0.6 0.3 2 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.3 2 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.1 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 01
Diagram	Creates Fishbone (Ishikawa) diagrams	Temperature Setup Flux — Splatter Height Height Control Flow Wave pump Solder process
Control Chart	Creates plots of time-ordered data, with control limits that bound the variation.	
Variability/Gauge Chart	Creates a graph of one Y variable versus multiple X variables. Analyzes Gauge R&R data and calculates variance components.	x     x
Pareto Plot	Creates a bar chart that displays causes of defects in order of decreasing frequency.	
Capability	Conducts capability analysis on multiple responses.	
Profiler	Displays prediction traces for models. Allows optimization using desirability functions, and Monte-Carlo simulation.	2000 500 500 500 500 500 500 500

<b>Table 11.2</b> Thatform Descriptions in the Graph Menu
---

Platform	Description	Example
Contour Profiler	Displays contours of a prediction formula.	Pit Firma MOULA
Surface Profiler	Creates a 3-dimensional, rotatable, surface plot of a model.	All of the second secon
Mixture Profiler	Displays contours for a prediction formula for models involving mixture factors.	p1 0.1 0.8 0.2 0.7 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.5
Custom Profiler	Provides an interface for simultaneous optimization of responses.	

 Table A.2
 Platform Descriptions in the Graph Menu

### The Tables Menu

The following table describes all of the platforms in the **Tables** menu.

Platform	Description	Menu
Summary	Creates a table containing summary statistics for each level of grouping variables.	Tables Rows Cols DOE
Subset	Creates a subset table of the original table.	월 Subset 화월 Sort
Sort	Sorts a table by one or more columns.	eea8t Stack Bree Split
Stack	Stacks columns and creates a new table.	Transpose
Split	Splits one or more columns by the values in another column.	Tabulate
Transpose	Creates a new table where the columns of the new table are the rows of the original table.	
Concatenate	Stacks multiple tables on top of each other.	
Join	Adds columns from a second table to the main table, by matching columns or row number.	
Update	Replaces data in a table with values from a second table.	
Tabulate	Constructs tables of summary statistics using an interactive interface.	
Missing Data Pattern	Describes the missing values in the table in terms of the columns where they are missing.	

 Table A.3 Platform Descriptions in the Tables Menu

## **Keyboard Shortcuts and Mouse Actions**

This section describes frequently used keyboard shortcuts and mouse actions.

### Files

The following table describes keyboard shortcuts for files.

Command	Windows	Macintosh	
New Data Table	Ctrl + N	Command + N	
New Script	Ctrl + T	Shift + Command + N	
New Journal	Ctrl + Shift + J	Option + Command + N	
New Project	Ctrl + Shift + P	not applicable	
Open File	Ctrl + O	Command + O	
Save File	Ctrl + S	Command + S	
Close File	Ctrl + W	Command + W	
Exit JMP	Ctrl + Q	Command + Q	
Print	Ctrl + P	Command + P	
JMP Help	F1	Shift + Command + ?	
JMP Preferences	Ctrl + K	Command + .	
Run script	Ctrl + R	Command + R	
Journal a report	Ctrl + J	Command + J	

Table A.4 Keyboard Shortcuts for Files

### **Data Tables**

The following table describes general keyboard shortcuts for data.

Table A.5 General Keyboard Shortcuts for Data

Command	Windows	Macintosh
Cut	Ctrl + X	Command + X

Keyboard Shortcuts and Mouse Actions

Command	Windows	Macintosh	
Paste	Ctrl + V	Command + V	
Сору	Ctrl + C	Command + C	
Copy as text	not applicable	Shift + Command + C	
Undo	Ctrl + Z	Command + Z	
Redo	Ctrl + Y	Shift + Command + Z	
Select all	Ctrl + A	Command + A	
Submit to SAS	F8	Command + Shift + R	
Show previously selected row	F2	not applicable	
Show next selected row	F3	not applicable	
Scroll to a column	Double click the column name in the column panel	Double click the column name in the column panel	
Increase font size	Ctrl + Shift + Plus Sign (+)	Command + Plus Sign (+)	
Decrease font size	Ctrl + Shift + Minus Sign (-)	Command + Minus Sign (-)	
Select where	Ctrl + Shift + W	not applicable	
Exclude/Unexlcude	Ctrl + E	not applicable	
Clear all selections from the data table	Esc	Esc	

The following table describes keyboard shortcuts for searching, finding, and replacing data.

Command	Windows	Macintosh
Find	Ctrl + F	Command + F
Find Next	Ctrl + G	Command + G
Replace	Ctrl + H	Command + =
Replace and Find Next	Ctrl + I	Command + L

 Table A.6
 Keyboard Shortcuts for Searching, Finding, and Replacing Data

### Windows

The following table describes keyboard shortcuts for working with windows.

Command	Windows	Macintosh
Close active window	Ctrl + W	Command + W
Show JMP Starter (also hide on Windows)	Ctrl + 0 (zero)	Command + 0 (zero)
Show Log window (also hide on Windows)	Ctrl + Shift + L	Command + 1
Move window to back	Ctrl + B	not applicable
Redraw window	Ctrl + D	Command + D

### **Mouse Actions**

The following table describes frequently used mouse actions.

Table A.8	Frequently	Used Mo	use Actions
-----------	------------	---------	-------------

Action	Windows	Macintosh	
Change the number of displayed decimal places in a report	Double-click the column in the report	Double-click the column in the report	
Turn numeric report output into a data table	Right-click and select Make Into Data Table	Ctrl + Click and select Make Into Data Table	
Display row legend in most graphics	Right-click in the graphic and select Row Legend	Ctrl + Click in the graphic and select Row Legend	
Select points on a graph	Click and drag within a plot. Extend selection by holding down the Shift key	Click and drag within a plot. Extend selection by holding down the Shift key	
In certain reports, apply command to all similar reports in that window	Ctrl + Click the red triangle then select the command	Command + Click the red triangle then select the command	
Resize all similar graphs in a report	Ctrl + resize one graph	Command + resize one graph	

#### 150

Navigating JMP Keyboard Shortcuts and Mouse Actions

Action	Windows	Macintosh
Create a subset of the data from a histogram	Select a bar or bars, and then double-click a bar; or, right-click and select Subset	Select a bar or bars, and then double-click a bar; or, right-click and select Subset
Select options (relating to journals)	Alt + right-click on blue triangle icon	not applicable
Show tree structure	Alt + right-click on blue triangle icon and select Show Tree Structure	Option + click on gray disclosure icon and select Edit > Show Tree Structure

Table A.8	Frequently	Used 1	Mouse	Actions
-----------	------------	--------	-------	---------